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Statement of the management of responsibility for preparation and approval of the financial
statements for the year ended on 31 December 20'17.

The following statement, which must be considered together with description of obligations of the
auditors contained in the submitted report of independent auditors, is made for the purpose of
division of responsibilities of auditors regarding the financial stalements of "Bank of Astana,, JSC
(hereinafter - the "Bank").

The management of the Bank shatt be [iabte for preparation of the financiaI statements retiabty
representing in atI materiaI aspects financiaI position of the Ban[i as at 31 December 2017, as wetl
as the results of its activity, cash ftow and changes in the capital for the period then ended, in
accordance with the lnternationaI FinanciaI Reporting Standards (hereinafter - the IFRS).

when preparing the financial statements, the management sha[[ be liabte for:

. setection of proper accounting principtes and their consecutive apptication;

. use of reasonabte estimations and calcutations;

. compliance with the requirements of the IFRS or disclosure of a[[ materia[ deviations from the
IFRS jn the notes to the financiaI statements; and

r preparation of the financiaI statements based on assumptiorr that
activities in the foreseeable future, except cases, when such
acceptable.

The management sha[[ atso be liable for:

. development, imptementation and
control system in the Bank;

ensuring functioning of effective and reliabte internal

o maintenance of the accounting system allowing preparing at any time the information about
financial position with sufficient degree of accuracy and ensuring conformance of the financial
statements with the requirements of the IFRS;

. keeping accounting records in accordance with the legistation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan;

. taking actions withjn timits of its competence for the purprose of protection of the Bank's
i nterests;

. detecting and preventing fraud and other abuses.

On 1 March 2018, these financial statements for the period endecl on 31 December 2017 have been
approved by the Bank's Management and signed on its behatf by:

On behalf of the Bank's management

Chief Accountant

Seal

Sh.K. Kurmanbayeva

the Bank wit[ continue its
assumption is not tegatty
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of "Bank of Astana" Joint-Stock Company.

Qualified opinion

We have audited the financial statements of "Bank of Astana" JSC (hereinafter referred to as the
Bank) consisting of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statements of
profit or [oss and other comprehensive income, changes in capital and cash ftow for the period
then ended, as wetl as the notes inctuding basic provisions of the accounting poticy and the other
exptanatory information.

ln our opinion, with the exception of possibte inftuence of the circumstances described in section
"Basis for expressing quatified opinion" of our report, the apptied financial statements reliabty
present in atl material aspects financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2017, as we[[ as its
financial resutts and cash ftow for the period then ended, in accordance with the lnternational
Financia[ Reporting Standards ("lFRS").

Basis for expressing qualified opinion

We coutd not get sufficient evidences to confirm assumptions used by the management, when
determining provision for impairment and, accordingty, with respect to amount of impairment
[osses for granted credits and other assets.

We coutd not get sufficient audit evidences retating to the agreement of assignment of receivabtes
on credits to the total amount of 9,568,185 thousand tenge with respect to influence of the
transaction on the statement of profit and loss for 2017 and cost of assets obtained against
repayment of that debt after the reporting date as stated in Note 19.

lnftuence of those deviations from the requirements of the lnternationa[ Financia[ Reporting
Standards on the financiaI statements was not determined.

We have carried out audit in accordance with the lnternational Standards on Audit ("15A"). ln
accordance with those standards, our responsibitities are described hereinafter in the section
"Responsibitity of the auditor for audit of the financial statements" of our report. We are
independent in retation to the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics of the Professional
Accountants of the lnternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (the Code of the IESBA)

and we have comptied with the other ethic obtigations in accordance with the Code of the
IESBA. We betieve that audit evidences obtained by us are sufficient and proper to be a basis
for expressing our opinion.

Paragraph attracting attention

Without any reservations in our opinion, we draw attention to the [ega[ proceeding with
"Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP described in Note 31 to the financiaI statements. Our opinion was
not modified with respect to that circumstance.

As it is further stated in Note 1 (d), the current corporate accounts and on-demand deposits inctude
the amount of 88,658,705 thousand tenge as at 31 December 2017, which are payabte on demand
to one counterparty. Based on exchange of the information with the mentioned counterparty, as

we[[ as taking into consideration the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the Bank does not
expect that batance to be futty withdrawn within at teast next two years. However, in case that
amount is withdrawn by that counterparty through lump-sum payment, beyond the terms and
conditions of concluded Agreement, this may affect abitity of the Bank to observe the fixed
externaI tiquidity ratios. ln addition, as disctosed in this note, to ensure tiquidity the Bank is abte
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to attract atternative sources of funding, which may inctude deposits of naturat persons and [ega[
entities, funds raising in the inter-bank market, setttement of the credit portfolio securitization
transactions or security of credit portfotio repayment. Our opinion was not modified with respect
to this circumstance.

Key audit issues

Key audit issues shat[ mean issues, which, according to our professionaI opinion, were the most
important for our audit of the financial statements for the current period. These issues were
considered in the context of our audit of the financial statement:; in general and at the time of
preparation of our opinion on these statements, and we do not express separate opinion on these
issues. With the exception of the circumstances described in sections "Basis for expressing
quatified opinion", we have ascertained that there are no other key audit issues requiring
disctosure in our report.

Other information

The management shatI be tiabte for the other information. The other information sha[[ inctude
information contained in the annual account for "Kazakhstan Stock Exchange" JSC, but it does not
inctude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual account supposedty
witt be submitted to us after the date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not extend to the ol-her information and we do not
make conctusion ensuring in any way assurance in relation to this information.

ln connection with audit of the financiaI statements carried out by us, our obtigation consists in
review of the other information as far as it is obtained and consi,Ceration in this regard whether
there are materiaI discrepancies between the other information and the financiaI statements or
our knowtedge obtained in the course of the audit, and whether the other information contains
other evidences of materiaI misrepresentations.

Responsibility of the management of the Bank and persons in clrarge of corporate governance
for the financial statements

The management shatl be responsibte for preparation and retiabte presentation of the mentioned
financial statements in accordance with the IFRS, as wetl as for the internal contro[ system, which
the management considers necessary for preparing the financiaI statements not containing
material misrepresentations due to unfair acts or errors.

When preparing the financial statements, the management shatl be tiabte for evatuating abitity of
the Bank to constantty continue its activities, disctosing, where appropriate, the information
retating to a going concern and preparing the statements on the basis of an assumption on a going

concern, with the exception of cases, where the management intends to liquidate the Bank, to
terminate its activities or where it has not any other reaI alternative, except for tiquidation or
termination of activities.

The persons in charge of corporate governance shatI be tiabte for supervising preparation of the
financiaI statements of the Bank.

Responsibility of the auditor for audit of the financial statements

Our goal is to get reasonable assurance that the financial statements do not contain materjal
misstatements due to unfair acts or errors and to issue the auditor's conclusion containing our
opinion. Reasonable assurance represents a high degree of assurance, but it does not mean a

guarantee that the audit carried out in accordance with the lnternational Standards on Audit
atways reveats materia[ misrepresentations, if any. Misrepresentations may resutt from unfair acts
or errors and shatl be deemed materiat, if it is possibte to reasonabrly assume that they may affect,
separatety or in the aggregate, the users'economic decisions made on the basis of these financial
statements.



ln the context of the audit carried out in accordance with the lnternational Standards on Audit, we
have used the professional judgement and kept professional scepticism throughout the period of
audit. Moreover, we take the fottowing actions:

- to detect and assess risks of material misrepresentations in the financial statements due to
unfair acts or errors; to devetop and perform audit procedures in response to those risks; to get
audit evidences sufficient and appropriate to be basis to exprerss our opinion. A risk of faiture
to detect material misrepresentation as a result of unfair acts is; higher than a risk of failure to
detect materiaI misrepresentation as a result of error, as unfilir acts may include coltusion,
fatsification, detiberate omission, misrepresentation of information or actions in circumvention
of the internaI control system;

- to understand the internal control system being important for the audit in order to develop
audit procedures relevant under the circumstances, but not to express an opinion on efficiency
of the internal control system of the Bank;

- to evatuate appropriateness of the apptied accounting poticy and reasonableness of accounting
estjmates and respective disctosure of the information prepared by the management;

- to make a conclusion on lawfutness of apptication by the manergement of an assumption on a
going concern, and on the basis of obtained audit evidences - a conctusion on existence of
substantiaI uncertainty in connection with events or con<Jitions, which may resu[t in
considerabte doubts about abitity of the Bank to constantly continue its activities. lf we
conctude on existence of substantiaI uncertainty, we must attract attention in our auditor's
conctusion to respective disclosure of information in the financiaI statements or modify our
opinion, in case such disctosure of information is undue. Our ,conctusions are based on audit
evidences obtained before the date of our auditor's conctusion. However, the future events or
conditions may resutt in inabitity of the Bank to constantty continue its activities;

- to evaluate representation of the financia[ statements in generat, structure and contents
thereof, inctuding disctosure of information, as wetI as wherther the financiaI statements
represent the undertying operations and events so as to ensure retiabte representation thereof.

We exchange information with the persons in charge of corporate governance by providing them,
inter atia, with the information about planned scope and tenms of the audit, as wetl as

considerabte observations based on the resutts of the audit, inctuding significant deficiencies in
the interna[ controtsystem, which we have found out in the course of the audit.

We also make statement for the persons in charge of corporate go\/ernance that we have complied
with att respective ethic requirements with respect to independence and informed those persons

about att retations and other issues, which may be reasonabty considered as affecting
independence of the auditor, and where necessary - respective pre,caution measures.

Out of issues, which we have informed to the persons in chargr: of corporate governance, we
determine the issues, which are the most important for the audit of the financiaI statements for
the current period and, accordingty, are the key issues of the aurjit. We describe those issues jn

our auditor's conctusion, except for the cases, where pubtic discl,osure of the information about
those issues is prohibited by the law or regutatory act, or where in rare instances we conctude that
the information about any issue must not be disclosed in our conctusion, as one can reasonably
assume that negative consequences of disclosure of such inforrnation witt go beyond pubticty
significant benefit from disctosure thereof.



Orazgatiyeva Assem is the leader of the audit engagement based on the results of which this

independent auditors' report has been issued.

BDO Kazakhstan LLP

State [icense of the Committee of financial
control of the Ministry of Finance of the
Repubtic of Kazakhstan No.1 5003448 dated 1 9

February 201 5 to carry out audit activity

"01 " March 201 8

No.MO-0000178

Commission f or
of RK on 21.01.2014

Buitding 6, Gabduttin Street,

Atmaty City, Repubtic of Kazakhstan



"Bank of Astana" JSC

Statement of profit o: loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended on 31 December

2017, thousand tenge

Note For the'year ended For the year ended
on 31 December on 31 December

2017 2016

lnterest incomes

lnterest expenses

Net interest income

Fee incomes

Fee expenses

Net fee income

Net profit on foreign exchange transactions

Net profit on transactions with trading securities

Other operating incomes

Other operating exPenses

Operating incomes

lmpairment losses

Expenses for personneI

Other generaI administrative expenses

Profit before taxes
Expense on income tax

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income, less income tax

Items, which are or may be subsequentty
rectassified as parts of profit or loss:

Provision for revatuation of financiaI assets

avaitabte for sate
- net change of fair vatue

Items, which may not be subsequently rectassified

as parts of profit or loss:

Provision for revatuation of land and buitdings

- net change of fair vatue

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the
period, less income tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

4

4

5

6

34,131,032
(19,749,101)

26,980,845
(19,921 ,595)

14,381,931 7,O59,25O

3,821,554
(1,932,071)

2,082,616
(474,419)

'1,889,483 1,608,197
509,277

(8'15,628)

6,936,1 53

(3,346,937)

194,878
(1 96,588)

279,048
(993,274)

8

8

9

10

11

12

19,554,279 7,951,561
(6,872,627)
(2,317 ,590)
(8,949,126\

(474,927)
(1,857,848)
(4,279,396)

1,414,941
(99,689)

1,339,390
(474,375)

1,315,252 865,015

80'l 129,925

4,902,803
4,903,604 129,925

6,218,856 994,940

25 43.6 43.2

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income must be considered together with the notes'

which shaLt be integraI parts of these financiaI statements'

Earnings per share
Basic and dituted



"Bank of Astana" JSC

lStatement of financial position for the year ended on 31 December Z0l7, thousand tenge

Note

'13

14

15

16

17

17

17

18

19

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Cash and cash equivatents

Financial instruments at fair vatue the changes in
which are booked as parts of profit or loss for the
period

Financia[ assets avaitable for sate

Credits and advances granted/paid to the banks and
other financiaI institutions
Credits granted to customers
-Credits granted to corporate customers
-Credits granted to small and medium-scale
companies
-Credits granted to retaiI customers

Fixed and intangible assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILlTIES

Accounts and deposits of banks and other financiaI
institutions
Current accounts and deposits of customers
- Current accounts and deposits of corporate
customers
- Current accounts and deposits of retaiI customers

Accounts payabte on REPO transactions

Deferred tax tiabitity
Other tiabitities
Total liabilities
CAPITAL

Share capitaI
Treasury shares purchased from sharehotders

Additionat paid capitaI

Provision for covering general banking risks

Provision for revatuation of financial assets
avaitabte for sale

Provision for revatuation of land and buitdings

339,682,1 33 361,0O4,637

65,632,908

7,945,284

626,790

527,738

16,290,532

130,973,221

22,625,572
27,471,595

67,588,493

1 39,080,652

2,974,744

6,611,745

30,245,467

107,744,066

43,679,127

4,347,900
26,420,946

20 20,097,849

193,682,359

71,128,486

641,658

1,447 ,133
4,768,195

31,099,930

751 ,569,087

44,013,370

121,743

2,474,502

71

21

22

17

23

291,265,680 329,278,632

24

24

42,085,468

(112,895)

957,976

1 00,800

5,201 ,251
1 93,853

34,785,467

(6,758,130)

(1 1 2,895)

957,976

99,999

298,448

2,455,140

48,416,453 31,726,OO5

339,682,1 33 361,O04,637

Shynar Kabduatiy'e Kurmanbayeva

Chief Accountant

Statement of cash flow for the year must be considered together with the notes, which shatl be

integral parts of these financial statements 
g

Retained profit
Total capital
Totat liabilities

Acting Chairman of



"Bank of Astana" JSC

lJtatement of cash ftow for the year ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

For the year ended For the year ended
on 31 December on 31 December

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY
Received fee
Paid fee
Received commission fee
Paid commission fee
Net revenue from operations with financiaI instruments
at fair vatue the changes in which are booked as parts
cf profit or loss for the period
Net revenue on foreign exchange transactions
Cther payments and other revenue, net amount
Payments to personnel
Cther generaI administrative payments

(lncrease)/decrease in operating assets
Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other
financiaI institutions
Credits granted to customers
Other assets
lncrease/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts and deposits of banks and other financial
i nsti tuti ons
Current accounts and deposits of customers
Accounts payabte on REPO transactions
Other [iabitities
Net cash from operating activity before income tax
Paid income tax
Cash from operating activity

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Sate (Purchase) of financial assets avaitabte for sale
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets
CapitaI expenditure
Fixed asset revatuation
Sate of fixed and intangible assets
Use of cash in investment activity

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITY
Revenue from share issue
Revenue from attocation of purchase shares
Purchased ordinary shares
Purchase of subordinated bonds
Cash from financial activity
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of changes of foreign exchange rates on amount of
cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash
Cash and cash
(Note 13)

ing of the period

(68,095,325) 94,239,532

(68,325,253) 93,673,862

25,340,466
(19,299,725)

3,570,122
\i.1,867 ,726)
l|8,760,912)

469,695
3,589 ,216

1i,,2,293,661)

1i,.7,278,234\

5,725,741

19,670,733
(47 ,142,797)

(11 ,141 ,099)

(3i1,081,970)
641,658

71,019,770
(19,220,900)

2,079,099
(494,502)

99,332

418,257
(714,176\

(1,880,221 )

(3,718,970)

6,972,666

(43,583,692)
(2,064,012)

(14,961,119)

149,852,498

435,5021,814,178

2,197,699
(1 8,004,833)

172,469

(1,040,620)
(2,635,030)
(3,027 ,879)

289
(15,634,676) (6,703,240)

7,3oo, oo1

3,575,190
(403,589)

'14,000,001

(6,758,130)

10,471,592
(73,488,338)

40,593

1 39,080,652

87,188,495
(104,626)

51,996,783
the period 65,632,908 139,080,652

Mukhtar Seri

Acting Chairman Chief Accountant

Statement of cash ftow for the year must be considered together with the notes, which shatt be
integraI parts of these financiaI statements

10
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(a)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decenrber 2017, thousand tenge

Basic provisions

Primary activity

"Bank of Astana" JSC (hereinafter - the "Bank") was estabtished in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan as a
joint stock company under the name "Bank "Astana-Finance" JSC in 2008. The primary activities are
deposit taking, customer accounts opening and maintenance, lending, issuing guarantees, cash and
setttement operations and transactions with securities and foreigrr currency. The activities of the
Bank are regutated by the National Bank of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan (hereinafter - the "RK NB").
The Bank has general license No.'1.1.257 dated 6 November 2009, which was re-registered on 24
August 201 1 .

ln accordance with Regulation of the National Bank of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan No.79 dated 1 Juty
2011 the Bank's license on deposit taking, individuats' bank account opening and maintenance was
revoked. As the resutt of this, during the year ended on 31 December 201 1 the Bank closed a[[
current accounts and deposits of individuats. On 31 March 2014 ther Bank received [icense No.1.1.10
from the NationaI Bank of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan on deposit taking and individuats' accounts
maintenance and resumed these activities. On 10 March 2015 the B,ank was re-registered as "Bank of
Astana" JSC.

The Bank's legaI address is: at 22, Koktem-2, Atmaty, 050040, the Flepubtic of Kazakhstan.

The Bank has eight branches from which it conducts its business throughout the Repubtic of
Kazakhstan. The majority of the assets and tiabitities of the Bank are in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan.
The bonds and ordinary shares issued by the Bank are listed on Kazarkhstan Stock Exchange.

Shareholders

Asat31 December2017 and 31 December2016, thefollowingsharerhotdersownedissuedshares:

31 Decembe:r 2017 31 December 2016
%%

(b)

Shareholders
O. Tokhtarov
D. Kumpeissov
T. Kashkinbayev
R. Shadiyev
Other

52.39

0.04

,17.57

61.07
6.58
5.52
5.07

21.76
100.00 100.00

On 19 March 2010, the Agency for regulation and supervision of financial market and financia[
organizations signed a muttilateraI agreement with the Bank, "Astana-Finance" J5C and other
subsidiaries prohibiting certain intergroup transactions.

On 19 May 2010 the Company transferred 100% of its sharehotding into the trust management of
Sovereign Weatth Fund "Samruk Kazyna" JSC (hereinafter - the "Fund"). The Fund undertook to
perform the Bank's sharehotder functions on a temporary basis for the shortest of 12 months and the
period up to the date on which the Company's restructuring ptarr is approved by the Kazakhstan
court and att the actions agreed in the restructuring plan are implernented.

On 71 January 2013 "Astana Finance" JSC and two individuals, Mr. K.Kh. Rakishev and
Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov, signed an agreement on sate of 100% shares of the Bank. On 3 May 2013, Astana
Finance disposed 49% of its sharehotding in the Bank, when the share sale deal was approved by the
Committee for controI and supervision of financiaI market and financiaI organizations, and new
sharehotders were granted the status of major sharehotders. The disposal of remaining 5'l% issued
shares was subject to satisfaction of the conditions precedent the Company compteting the
restructuring. The Bank's management determined that atthough "Astana Finance" JSC owned 51%

shares of the Bank as at 31 December 2013, it lost contro[ over tthe Bank when new shareholders
acquired 49% shares in the Bank on 3 May 2013. This is because the Company's status of a bank
hotding company has been previousty revoked by the Committee and, as a result, the Company's
rights to vote at the General Meeting of Sharehotders are suspended.

On 31 December 2014, the new shareholders purchased additional 100,000 shares in the Bank.

Taking into account the satisfaction of the conditions prescribed in the Restructuring Ptan of
"Astana Finance" JSC approved by the RK NB and the Speciatized lnter-district Economic Court of
Atmaty (hereinafter - the "Court") on 24 Aprit 2015 and 27 Aprit 2015, respectively, the Court
decided to complete restructuring on 2 June 2015. The restructuring process was compteted on 23
June 2015. As a result, "Astana Finance" JSC sotd remaining 51%lo individuats.
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(c)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decenrber 2017, thousand tenge

On 29 Juty 20'15, Mr. K.Kh. Rakishev also futty disposed of his share of ownership by setting 2,362,792
ordinary shares to minority shareholders of the Bank.

On 16 November 2015, Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov purchased 7,200,000 ordinary shares in the Bank. On 4
December 2015, Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov sotd 1,485,047 ordinary :;hares in the Bank to Mr. T.l.
Kashkinbaev.

On 28 June 2016, the Bank issued 6,400,000 ordinary shares of the Bank, and 4,699,515 of these
shares were purchased by Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov.

On 30 September 2016, Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov purchased 8,333,334 or<Jinary shares in the Bank.

During 2016, the Bank made repurchases of its own shares in the to[a[ quantily of 2,851,199.

|n2017 the Bank increased the number of authorised shares up to 100,000,000 shares.

On 7 June 2017, Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov purchased additional.1,739,13'l ordinary shares in the Bank, for
consideration amounting to KZT 2,000,001 thousand, which was settted in cash.

On 30 June 2017, the Bank increased the share capitat by the amount of 5,300,000 thousand tenge
by attocating the Bank's ordinary shares among pubtic investors in '"Kazakhstan Stock Exchange" JSC,
there were 4,606,696 aItocated shares.

For the year 2017 6,347,827 shares were issued to the totaI amount of 7,300,001 thousand tenge.
Likewise, 30,636 shares to the total amount of 403,589 thousand tenge were purchased over the
stated period.

On 15 December 2017, the Bank increased the share capitat by the amount of 7,161,719 thousand
tenge by offering 2,88'1,835 ordinary shares of the Bank to pubtic investors on the Moscow Stock
Exchange, which were previously purchased by the Bank.

Conditions for carrying out financial and business activity in the Republic of Kazakhstan

The Bank carries out its activity primarily in Kazakhstan. Therefore, the Bank is exposed to
economic and financiaI risks in the markets of Kazakhstan, which demonstrate specific features
inherent in devetoping markets. Lega[, tax and statutory acts a,re being improved, but may be
differentty interpreted and is subject to often changes, which, in combination with the other
deficiencies of the legaI and fiscaI systems, make additionaI diffir:utties for the banks carrying out
their activities in Kazakhstan. Moreover, recent considerabte impairment of the Kazakhstan tenge
and reduction of price for oi[ in the wortd markets increased the extent of uncertainty of the
conditions for carrying out business activity.

The apptied financiaI statements present the management's estimation of possibte influence of
existing conditions for carrying out financia[ and business activil-y on the results of activity and
financiaI position of the Bank. Further devetopment of the conditions for carrying out financial and
business activity may differ from the management's estimation.

Kazakhstan banking sector risk and going concern assumption

After devatuation of the tenge in 201 5, the Kazakhstan banking sector experienced significant
problems, and during the years 2016 and 2017 two commercial tranks, as it happened, faced the
difficutty when futfitting their obtigations to the creditors. These events increased the overall extent
of uncertainty in the banking sector, which reveated themsetves in contraction of the tiquidity
markets and considerabte outftow of deposits for some banks. The Nationa[ Bank of Kazakhstan atso
recentty announced of its plans concerning the rehabititation program in order to render support
those banks, which experience deterioration in their asset quatity.

During the years 2014-2016 the prices for energy resources considerably reduced with the result of
significant decrease in export revenues. On 20 August 201 5, the Government and the RK NB
announced of transition to a new monetary poticy based on freely floating tenge rate and abotished
the exchange rate band. As a resutt, the tenge considerabty devatued towards basic foreign
currencies. High tevet of dottarization in Kazakhstan economy was stit[ evidenced during September-
December 2015 and January-February 2016 that resutted in considerable deficit of tiquidity in tenge
in the banking system, the record-breaking levets of the fee rates in the money market and
suspension of credit activities. ln February 2016, the RK NB introduced the base rate equaI to 17% t
2% and transited to the poticy of inflation targeting. The actions tarken by the RK NB aItowed solving
the probtem of insufficient tiquidity of tenge in the system and reducing the average inftation rate.

ln the middte of January 2016, the international rating agency Standard & Poor's considerabty cut its
forecasts with respect to the prices for oil during 2016-2019. Since economy of Kazakhstan

(d)

14



"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'1 Decentber 2017, thousand tenge

substantia[[y depends on oiI and gas sector, Standard &. Poor's expects stagnation or very
insignificant GDP increase.

As at 31 December 2017,Lhe basic rate of the RK NB was equal I'c 9.25% t 1% (as at 31 December
2016: 12% t 1%). Notwithstanding sudden high growth of Kazakhsl:an GDP f or 2017, the assets and
deposits of the banking system for that period reduced, and the credit activities continued
stagnating. From beginning of 2017, the banking sector of Kazakhstan began the period of rather
scaled transformation, which already began to significantty afferct the showings of the banking
system. Since 2017 the equity capitaI adequacy criteria were raised, supervision and response
measures on the part of a regutator got stringent, and from beginning of 201 8 the banks must transit
to the new system of accounting for formation of provisions for credit toss (IFRS 9). Such changes in
many respects forced the bank to consolidate.

The Bank's management monitors current changes in economic situation and takes actions, which it
deems necessary to keep stabitity and devetopment of business of the Bank in the foreseeabte
future. However, at the moment it is difficutt to determine the effect of changes in economic
situation on the future resutts of activity and financial position of the Bank.

As at 3'1 December 2017, according to the management estimatiorr there is the capitaI sufficient to
absorb credit losses to the amount of 15,000,000 thousand tenge (11016: 10,000,000 thousand tenge)
before the fixed regutatory capital ratio (k'l ) is distorted.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the management reveated the evidences of impairment equal to
approximatety 56.91% of credits composing the portfolio of corporate credits of the Bank (2016:
35%). The most of those impaired credits was secured by pledges, inctuding cash deposit, property,
land ptots or other [ess liquid assets. The Bank catcutated potentiall future revenues from disposal of
such security with the hetp of independent appraisats, and this was the key assumption, which
affected measurement of impaired credits and required considerable professionaI judgment.

Actions taken by the Bank to minimize the credit risk during 2017 are disctosed in note 26(c). They
inctude support of sufficient [eve[ of security of corporate credits and continuous monitoring of the
credit portfotio. The management atso tries to increase the [evel of the regutatory capitaI of the
Bank in order to mitigate sufficient buffer to absorb possibte future, additionaI credit losses, if any.

Liquidity risk

As exptained in Note 26(d), as at 3'l December 2017 the current corporate accounts and on-demand
deposits inctude the amount of 88,658,705 thousand tenge (as at 31 December 2016:85,855,496
thousand tenge), which is payable on demand to one counterparty. On the basis of exchange of the
information specifying the counterparty the Bank does not e.xpect that batance to be fulty
withdrawn during at least next two years, neverthetess, the tiquidity risk is significantly
concentrated.

These financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Bank wi[[ continue to keep its
base of customer deposits. However, the Bank, together with the other banks carrying out activities
in this sector, remains exposed to the risk that in case of ma:;sive and unexpected outflow of
customer deposits, such outftow wit[ adversety affect activities of the Bank.

Actions taken by the Bank to manage tiquidity risk inctude support of substantiat tiquid assets in the
form of cash and cash equivatents and continuous monitoring of those customer deposits, which
represent considerabte concentrations of tiquidity risk as stated in note 26(d). Moreover, the major
sharehotder of the Bank informed that it si ready to grant additional financing, if necessary, in order
to assist in case tiquidity is insufficient, if such assistance becomes required.

The management took the following additionat actions to eliminate the credit risk and tiquidity risk
during the period after 31 December 2017:

o the management continues to raise the [eve[ of ptedges hetd as security of the portfolio of
corporate credits;

o the management reviewed its credit facitity agreements made with the other counterparties
whereby the funds may be used in case of tiquidity deficit;

o keeping the highty liquid assets such as "Reverse REPO" transactions, interbank deposits and
loans.
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(a)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decentber 2017 , thousand tenge

Basic principles for preparing the financial statements

Statement of conformance to the IFRS

The apptied financia[ statements have been prepared in accordance with the lnternational Financial
Reporting Standards (hereinafter - the IFRS).

Basis for value measurement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principte at actual
costs, with the exception of the financial instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in which
are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period, financial assets avaitabte for sate, land and
buitdings booked at fair value.

FunctionaI currency and representation currency of details of the financial statements

The functional currency of the Bank is the Kazakhstan tenge, which, being the national currency of
the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, demonstrates the best the economic substance of the most of
operations settted by the Bank and retated circumstances influencing on its activities.

The Kazakhstan tenge is the currency of representation of details of these financia[ statements, as
wett.

At[ detaits in the financial statements are rounded off to the proximate thousand tenge.

Use of professional judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions

Preparation of the financiaI statements in accordance with the IFRS requirements obtiges the
management to make judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions affecting apptication of
the accounting poticy and the amount of assets and tiabitities, inr:omes and expenses presented in
the financial statements. The actual results may differ from the merntioned estimations.

Estimations and undertying assumptions are reviewed on a regutar basis. Adjustments in estimations
are recognized in that reporting period in which respective estirnations are reviewed and in any
subsequent periods, which they retate to.

The information with respect to material uncertain estimations and critical reasonabte judgements
when applying the principtes of the accounting poticy is given in Note'lT "Credits granted to
customers" and Note 19 "Other assets".

Change of the accounting policy and procedure for data presentation

The Bank adopted the "Project on review of the requirements for disctosure of information"
(amendments to IAS 1 ) with the date of the initiaI apptication on 1 January 2016. These
amendments clarify the materiatity principte. ln particular, it is expticitty stated that the entities
must detaiI presentation of items of the statement of financia[ position and the of the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, if such presentation give the users of the financial
statements more useful information; and may combine the items in the statement of financial
position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, if the items
determjned in IAS 1 are insignificant.

Basic provisions of the accounting policy

The Bank consistently apptied the provisions of the accountinr3 poticy described betow in a[[
reporting periods presented in these financiaI statements.

Foreign currency

The foreign exchange transactions are transtated into respective 1'unctional currencies of the Bank
at the foreign exchange rates prevaiting as at the date of transactions. The monetary assets and
tiabitities denominated in the foreign currency as at the reporting date are transtated into the
functiona[ currency at the exchange rate prevaiting as at that reporting date. Foreign exchange gain
or loss on monetary items represents a difference between the amortized cost of respective item in
functional currency at the beginning of the reporting period adjusted for interest charged at
effective interest rate and payments for the reporting period and the amortized cost of that item in
foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of that reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign currency and measured at fair vatue are
transtated into functionaI currency at the foreign exchange rates prevaiting as at the dates of the
fair vatue measurement. Non-monetary assets and tiabitities denom'inated in foreign currency and

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)
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(b)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decentber 2017 , thousand tenge

booked at actuaI costs are translated into functionaI currency at the foreign exchange rate
prevaiting as at the date of transaction.

The foreign exchange differences resutting from transtation into foreign currency are booked as
parts of profit or loss (with the exception of differences arising at transtation of equity financial
instruments avaitabte for sate, with the exception of cases, whr=re the difference arises due to
impairment, in which case the foreign exchange differences booked as parts of the other
comprehensive income are rectassified as parts of profit or loss), the financiaI tiabitity booked as
hedging of net investments in foreign transactions (if hedging is effective), or respective cash flows
meeting the requirements for hedging operations (if hedging is erffective) booked as parts of the
other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash bank notes and coins, cash at ATMs, ctear balances (accounts
[ike "Nostro") with the RK NB and other banks, as welI as highty [iquid financiaI assets with not less
than 3-month maturity, which are not exposed to significant risk of change of the fair value and are
used by the Bank to settte short-term liabilities. The statutory provision with the RK NB is not
considered as cash equivatent in connection with restrictions in use thereof. Cash and cash
equivatents are booked at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

Financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments

The financial instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in which are booked as parts of profit
or loss for the period represent the financialassets or liabilities, wlrich:

- are purchased or arise mainty for the purpose of sate or purchas,e in the near future;
- are parts of the portfolio of the jointty controtled identifiabte financial instruments with respect

to which there is an evidence in the recent past of derivation of profit in the short term;
- are derivative (with the exception of derivative financiaI instruments, which are financiaI

guarantee agreements or created and actually used hedging instruments, which are effective); or

- at initiaI recognition are ctassified as measured at fair vatue the change in which are booked as
parts of profit or loss for the period.

The Bank may ctassify financiaI assets and tiabitities as measure at fair value the changes in which
are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period, if one of the fottowing conditions is met:
- the assets or [iabilities are managed, measured and booked in internaI accounts on the basis of a

fair vatue;

- such an approach futly or substantiatty etiminates the mismatch effect in the accounting records,
which woutd exist otherwise; or

- an asset or a tiabitity has embedded derivative financial instrurrent, which significantty changes
cash ftows, which woutd be expected under an agreement in ther absence thereof.

At[ derivative financiaI instruments held for trade with positive fair vatue, as wetl as purchased
option contracts, are booked in the financiaI statements as assets. A[[ derivative financiaI
instruments hetd for trade with negative fair vatue, as wetl as issued option contracts, are booked in
the financiat statements as liabitities.

The management determines a category in which a financial instrument shoutd be ctassified at
initial recognition thereof. Derivative financia[ instruments and financial instruments ctassified at
initiaI recognition as measured at fair vatue the changes in whicl-r are booked as parts of profit or
loss for the period are not rectassified from the financiaI instrunnents measured at fair vatue the
changes in which are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period. lf the financial assets match
the definition of credits and accounts receivabte, they may be rectassified from the financial
instruments measured at fair value the changes in which are bookerd as parts of profit or [oss for the
period or from the assets avaitabte for sale, if an entity intends and is abte to hold those assets in
the foreseeabte future or to maturity. The other financiaI instruments onty rarety may be
rectassified from the financial instruments measured at fair value the changes in which are booked
as parts of profit or loss for the period. The rare instances are unordinary one-time events, which
wit[ not [ikety repeat in the nearest future.

(c)

(i)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decenrber 2017, thousand tenge

The credits and accounts receivabte represent non-derivative financiaI assets with fixed or definabte
payments, which are not quoted in actively functioning market, with the exception of those ones,

which the Bank:

- intends to setl immediately or in the very near future;

- ctassifies at initia[ recognition as measured at fair value the changes in which are booked as parts

of profit or loss for the period;

- ctassifies at initiaI recognition as avaitabte for sate; or

- f or which the Bank may not compensate att initiatty made investments due to the reasons other
than credit impairment.

The investments hetd to maturity represent non-derivative financial assets with fixed or definable
payments and fixed maturity date, which the Bank intends and is ;rbte to hotd to maturity, with the
exception of those ones, which:

- the Bank classifies at initiat recognition as measured at fair vatue the changes in which are
booked as parts of profit or loss for the period;

- the Bank ctassifies as avaitabte for sale; or

- match the definition of the credits and accounts receivabte.

The financiaI assets avaitabte for sate represent those non-derivative financiaI assets, which are
ctassified as availabte for sate or do not match the definition of th,e credits and accounts receivable,
investment hetd to maturity or financiaI instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in which
are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period.

(ii) Recognition of financial instruments in the financial statements

The financial assets and tiabitities are booked in the statement of financial position, if the Bank

enters into contractuaI retations the subject matter of which impties the mentioned financial
instruments. A[[ events of standard purchase of the financiaI assets are booked as at the date of
setttements.

(iii) Measurement of value of the financiaI instruments

A financiaI asset or tiabitity is initiatty measured at fair value ptu:;, in the event of a financial asset

or tiabitity not measured at fair vatue the changes in which are booked as parts of profit or loss for
the period, the costs for transaction directty attributed to purchase or issue of a financiaI asset or

tiabitity.

After initial recognition the financiaI assets, inctuding derivative financia[ instruments being the
assets, are measured at their fair vatue without deducting any costs for transactions, which coutd be

incurred as the resutt of sate or other retirement, with the exception of:

- the credits and accounts receivabte, which are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method;

- the investments hetd to maturity, which are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method;

- the investments in equity instruments without market quotations in activety functioning market
the fair value of which may not assessed with a sufficient degree of assurance. such instruments
are booked in the financial statements at actual costs.

At[ financiat tiabitities, with the exception of the financial tiabitities measured at fair vatue the
changes in which are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period and the financia[ tiabitities
arising in case transfer of a financial asset booked at fair value does not meet the criteria of
derecognition, are measured at amortized cost.

(iv) Amortized cost

The amortized cost of a financiaI asset or tiabitity represents a cost at which a financiaI asset or

tiabitity were measured at initiat recognition, less payments rcf a principal amount of a debt
adjusted for an amount of accumutated depreciation of a difference between initiatty recognized

cost and cost at redemption assessed using the effective interest rate method, as wetl as less

impairment loss. Amount of bonuses and discounts, as wetI as costs for transactions are inctuded

into book vatue of a respective instrument and are depreciated brased on effective interest rate for
that instrument.

18



"Bank of Astana" JSC

l,lotes to the financiatstatements for the period ended on 3'l December 2017' thousand tenge

(v) Principte of measurement at fair value

l=air vatue represents a price, which woutd resutt at sate of an asset or paid at transfer of a tiabitity

lnder conditions of a transaction settted in organized market between the market participants as at

[he date of measurement at primary-markeior, in the absence therreof, in the most favourabte

market to which the Bank has access'as at the stated date. Fair vatue of tiabitities represents a risk

of defautt therein.

As far as practicable, the Bank assesses a fair value of an instrument using quotations of that

instrument in active market. The market is recognized active, if ,asset or tiabitity transactions are

settted frequentty enough and in u ,otrr" sufficient to determine quotations on a regutar basis'

ln the absence of current quotations in the active market the Bank uses the vatuation methods'

which use to the maximum our"*uuil inprt autu and minimatty use non-obseryabte input data' The

setected vatuation methods inctuJe alt'factors, which the marl'iet participants woutd take into

consideration under these circumstances'

The best evidence of a fair vatue of a financial instrument at irritiat recognition is usua.tty a

tion. lf the Bank ascertains that a

fair vatue is not confirmed bY the
tY and is not based on vatuation
ii initialty measured at fair vatue

itiat recognition and a transaction
rs a Part of Profit or loss during an

moment when measurement 'is

ion is atreadY ctosed'

(vi) Profits and losses arising at subsequent measurement

profits or losses arising at change of a fair vatue of a financial asset or tiabitity are booked as

fottows:

- profit or loss on a financial instrument ctassified as measured at fair vatue the changes in which

are booked as parts of profit or. ioriior the period shatt be bool<ed as a part of profit or loss;

using the effective interest rate method'

profit or loss on financiaI assets and tiabitities booked at amortiz:ed cost shatt be booked as part of

profit or loss in case of derecognition-oiimpairment of a financiaI asset or tiabitity, as wetl as in the

course of accruaI of respective depreciation'

(vii) Derecognition

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset at th
cash ftows on that financia[ asset or when it t
a transaction in which substantiatty atl risks

financiat asset are transferred to another pa

reserve substantia[ part of atl risks and ben

asset and does not reserye control of a fina

with respect to which the requirements for

Bank or is reserved to it, is recognized as a

position. The Bank derecognizes a financiaI

respective contract are discharges or cancetted or expire'

The Bank s and conditions of which it transfers the assets

recognizebutitreservelsa[[orapartofrisksandbenefits
resutting assets. provid'ing reservation a atl or substantiatty

att risks a ognize transferred assets'

When settting transactions under the terms and conditions of which the Bank does not reserve' but

does not transfer substantiatty att risks and benefits resutting from a right of ownership in a financial

asset, that utt"t ii Jerecognized, in case the Bank loses contro[ of an asset'
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''Bank of Astana" JSC

1lotes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'l December 2017, thousand tenge

lf, upon transfer of an asset, the Bank reseryes control of it, it continues to recognize an asset to

the extent it reserves an interest in an asset to be determined as a de'gree of exposure of the Bank

[o changes in its vatue'

lf the Bank acquires own debt tiabitity, then it is exctuded from the statement of financial position,

and a difference between a book vatue of a tiabitity and paid consideration is inctuded as a part of

profit or loss from earty discharge of a tiabitity.

The Bank writes off the assets, which are recognized non-recoverabte.

(viii) REPO and reverse REPO transactions

The securities sotd under the agreements of sate subject to obtigation to buy back (REPO

transactions) are booked as an operation for fund raising secured with pledge of securities, and the

securities continue to be booked in the statement of financial position, and the tiabitities to

counterparties are inctuded as parts of the accounts payabte on REPO transactions. A difference

between selting price and buy-back price represents interest expense and is booked as part of profit

or loss for the vatidity period of REPO transaction using the effective interest rate method.

Securities purchased under the agreements of purchase subject trr obtigation to setI back (reverse

REpO transactions) are booked as amounts of the accounts receivarbte on reverse REPO transactions

using the effective interest rate method.

lf the assets purchased under the agreements of purchase subject to obligation to sell back are sotd

to third parties, an obtigation to return securities are booked as a tiabitity hetd for trade and

measured at fair vatue.

(ix) Assets and tiabilities offset

The financiaI assets and tiabitities of the Bank are set off and booked in the statement of financiaI

position in reduced form, if there are [ega[ basis for this and the parties intend to settle a debt

througn offset or to dispose of an asset and to discharge a tiabitity simuttaneousty.

(d) Fixed assets

(i) Fixed assets

The items of fixed assets are booked at cost less accumutated depreciation amounts and impairment

losses, with the exception of tand and bujtdings, which are booked at revatued amount as it is

described herei nafter.

ln the event an item of fixed assets consist of several components with different useful [ife, such

components are booked as separate items of fixed assets'

(ii) Revaluation

[and and buitdings are subject to revaluation on a regutar basis. lntervats of revatuation depend on

changes in fair value of buitdings, which are subject to revatuation. lncrease as a resutt of

revatuation in value of land and buitdings ctassified as "Land and buitdings", which increase is

booked as part of the other comprehensive income, with the exception of cases, where previous

decrease as a resutt of revatuation in vatue of the mentioned items booked as part of profit or loss is

compensated. ln this event the resutt of revaluation is booked as part of profit or loss. Decrease as a

resutt of revatuation in vatue of tand and buitdings ctassified as "Land and buitdings", which

decrease is booked as part of profit or loss, with the exception of cases, where previous increase as

a resutt of revatuation in vatue of the mentioned items, which increase is booked as part of the

other comprehensive income, is written off. ln this event the result of revatuation is booked as part

of the other comprehensive income'
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(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is accrued in the straight-tine method during their expected useful life
and is booked as part of profit or loss. Depreciation is accrued from a date of purchase of an item,
and for the items of fixed assets erected using own resources - frclm comptetion of construction of
an item and its readiness for operation. The land ptots are not depreciated. The useful [ives of
different items of fixed assets may be stated as fotlows:

Buitdings

Furniture and equipment
Transport vehictes

Computer equipment

lmprovement of [eased property

(e) lntangible assets

10-100 years;

7-10 years;

7 years;

3-5 years;

3-5 years.

Purchased intangibte assets are booked in the financial statements at actual costs less accumutated
amortization and impairment losses.

Costs to acquire licenses for special software and imptementation thereof are capitatized in a vatue
of a respective intangibte asset.

Amortization on intangibte assets is accrued in the straight-line method during their expected useful
tife and is booked as part of profit or [oss. The useful lives of intarngible assets varies from 3 to 20

years.

(f) Seized assets

Seized assets are accounted for at less of two vatues: actua[ cost or net reatizable value.

Net reatizabte vatue represents supposed (estimated) setling price' of an item of inventories in the
course of ordinary business activity of the Bank, less estimated costs for comptetion of work
performance retating to that item and sate thereof.

(g) Asset impairment

At the end of each reporting period the Bank evatuates whether there are objective evidences of
impairment of a financiaI asset or a group of financiaI assets. ln case there are such evidences, the
Bank measures an amount of any impairment [oss.

A financiaI asset or a group of financiaI assets is impaired, and impairment losses occur provided

onty existence of objective evidences of impairment as a resutt of one or more events occurred afer
initiat recognition of a financial asset ([oss event) and provided that the mentioned event (or events)

had inftuence on expected future cash ftows on a financial asset or a group of financial assets, which

may be evatuated with sufficient degree of retiabitity.

Objective evidences of impairment of the financial assets may inctude defautt in tiabitities (defautt)
or detays in payments by a borrower, borrower's viotation of obtigations under a contract or the
terms and conditions of a contract, restructuring of a financial asset or a group of financial assets on

conditions, which in any other case the Bank woutd not consider, evidences of possibte bankruptcy
of a borrower or issuer, disappearance of active market for a :;ecurity, reduction of vatue of a

cotlateraI or other observabte data retating to a group of assets, s;uch as aggravation of sotvency of
borrowers composing a group or change of economic conditions, which correlate with defautt in
tiabitities (defautt) of the borrowers composing the mentioned group.

Significant or continuous decrease in fair value of an investment irr equity security available for sate

down to vatue betow actual costs for that security is an objective e'vidence of impairment.

(i) Financial assets booked at amortized cost

The financiaI assets booked at amortized cost mainty consist otl the credits and other accounts

receivabte (hereinafter - the credits and accounts receivabte). The Bank regularty tests the credits
and accounts receivabte in order to determine possible impairment. At first the Bank evatuates

existence of objective evidences of impairment separately for credits and accounts receivabte,

which are materiaI on a stand-alone basis, and separatety or jointty for the credits and accounts

receivabte, which are not material on a stand-atone basis. lf the Bank determines that there are not

objective evidences of impairment on a credit or accounts receivabte tested separatety, whether
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they are material or not, the credit or accounts receivabte shatl be inctuded into a group of the

credits and accounts receivable with simitar characteristics of credit risk and tested for impairment

as part of a group of assets on a joint basis. The credits and accounts receivable separatety tested

for impairment, with respect to which impairment loss appears or continues to exist, shatI not be

included into join test for impairment.

ln case there are objective evidences of impairment loss on the credit or accounts receivable, an

amount of loss is measured as a difference between a book value of the credit or accounts

receivabte and current present vatue of expected future cash ftows, inctuding recoverabte amount of
guarantees and co[lateral discounted using initiat effective intere:st rate on the credit or accounts

receivabte. ln accordance with the terms and conditions of conctudecl contracts the cash ftows and

historical experience of losses, which are adjusted on the basis of respective avaitabte information

representing current economic conditions, are basis for determininq expected cash ftows'

ln some cases avaitabte information required to assess an amount of inrpairment loss on the credit or

accounts receivabte may be timited or not meet anymore the current conditions and circumstances.

Something simjtar may occur, in case a borrower experiences finztnciaI difficulties, and a scope of
avaitabte information with respect to simitar borrowers is [imited. ln such events the Bank uses its

experience and judgements in order to assess an amount of impairrnent [oss.

At[ impairment losses from the credits and accounts receivabte are booked as parts of profit or loss

and are subject to recovery onty if subsequent increase in recoverable amount may be objectivety
retated with an event occurred after recognition of impairment [os:;es'

ln case a debt on a credit may not be recovered, a credit shatl be written off at the expense of

respective provision for credit impairment. Such credits (and an'y respective provisions for credit
impairment) are written off after the management determines that clebt on the credits may not be

recovered and atl necessary procedures for recovering a debt on the credits are completed'

(ii) Financial assets booked at actual costs

The financial assets booked at actual costs inctude non-quoted equity instruments composing the

financial assets avaitabte for sate, which are not booked at fair vallue, since their fair value may not

be assessed with sufficient degree of retiabitity. ln case there are objective evidences that such

investments are impaired, impairment loss is catculated as a difference between book vatue of

investments and current present vatue of expected future caslr ftows discounted using current

market rate of return on simitar financial assets.

Att impairment losses on the mentioned investments are booked as parts of profit or loss and are not

subject to recoverY.

(iii) FinanciaI assets available for sale

lmpairment losses from the financial assets avaitabte for sate are recognized through carry-over of

accumutated loss recognized as part of the other comprehensive income, as the parts of profit or

loss as rectassified adjustment. Accumutated loss rectassified from the other comprehensive income

as part of profit or loss represents a difference between purr:hase cost less any payments of

principat amount and depreciation and current fair value less impairment loss previousty recognized

at pait of profit or loss. Changes in provision for impairment retating to time value of money are

booked as a component of interest income. ln case a fair vatue of impaired debt security avaitabte

for sate increases in subsequent period and increase may objectivety retate to an event occurred

after recognition of impairment loss as part of profit or [oss, the irnpairment loss shatl be recovered,

and recovered amount shatt be recognized as part of profit or [oss' However, any subsequent

recovery of fair vatue of impaired equity security ctassified as avajtable for sate is recognized as part

of the other comprehensive income.

(iv) Non-financialassets

The non-financial assets other than deferred taxes are tested for impairment as at each reporting

date. Recoverabte amount of non-financial assets is the larges;t vatue of fair vatue [ess setling

expenses and vatue in use. When calcutating a vatue in use, the cash ftows expected in the future

are discounted to their present vatue using pre-tax discounting rate representing the current market

measurement of time vatue of money and risks specific for that asset or CFGU. When assessing a

vatue jn use, the expected future cash ftows are discounted to their current present vatue using a

discounting rate before taxes, which represents the current market measurement of time vatue of

money anJ risks inherent in that asset. lmpairment loss is recognized if a book vatue of an asset or

its reipective cash ftow generating unit (CFGU) is higher than its e'stimated recoverabte amount.

Att impairment losses from non-financiaI assets are booked as parts of profit or loss and are subject
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[o recovery onty if estimates used at assessment of recoverabte amount have changed' Any

impairmeni toss tf an asset is subject to recovery to the extent a book vatue of an asset does not

exceed such book vatue (tess amortization and deterioration), which woutd exist, if impairment loss

was not booked in the financial statements'

(h) Provisions

of financial position, where the Bank has a [ega[ or constructive

nt and it is probabte that funds diversion witl be required to

of such a tiabitity is significant, then provisions are determined

ftows using a discounting rate before taxes, which represents

time vatue of money and, where appticable, the risks inherent

in that tiabititY.

(i) Liabilities of credit nature

ln the course of the current business activity the Bank assumes contingent credit tiabitities inctuding

unused credit facitities, letters of credil and guarantees and provides other forms of credjt

lnsurance.

Financial guarantees mean contracts obtiging the Bank to make particutar payments compensating a

hotder of a financial guarantee the losses incurred as the resutt of inabitity of an individua[ debtor to

pay on terms fixed by conditions of a debt instrument'

Liabitity on a financiatguarantee is initiatty recognized at fair vatu,e less retated costs for transaction

and is subsequently rieasured at the tirgest of two vatues: amounts recognized initiatty. less

accumutated Aepreciation or amount of provision for possibte [o:;ses on that guarantee. Provisions

for possibte losses on financiaI guarantees and other credit tiabilities are recognized, when losses

are highty probabte and amountiof such losses may be assessed with sufficient degree of retiabitity'

Liabitities on financia[ guarantees and provisions for other credit tiabitities are inctuded into the

other [iabitities.

Liabitities on granting credits are not recognized in the financiaI statements with the exception of

the fottowing:

- tiabitities on granting credits, which the Bank ctassifies as financial tiabitities measured at fair

vatue the changis in w6ich are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period;

- if the Bank has past experience in sates of assets purchased due to tiabitities on granting credits,

shortty after incurrence thereof, simitar tiabitities on grantingl credits attributed to the same

category of instruments are considered as derivative financiaI instruments;

- tiabitities on granting credits the setttement of payments on whrich are made under a contract in

net amount in Jash or through transfer or issue of another financiat instrument;

.tiabititiesongrantingcreditsataratebelowmarketone.

(j) Share caPital

(i) OrdinarY shares

The ordinary shares are ctassified as capitat. Costs directty retated wjth issue of ordinary shares and

options on ,hur", are recognized as decrease ir capita[ less any tax effects'

(ii) Dividends

The Bank,s abitity to dectare and pay dividends shatt be determined in accordance with the

requirements of the tegistation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan.

Divjdends on ordinary shares are booked as use of retained profit as far as they are declared'

(k) Taxation

lncome tax incl :d tax' lncome tax is booked as part

ofprofitortosrrelatestotheitemsoftheother
comprehensive ers directty as part of capitat' in

which case it i nsive income or directty as part of

capitat.

Current income tax represents an amount of tax, which, as expr:cted, witt.be paid or compensated

with respect to taxabte profit or tax loss for the year, and whi,ch is catcutated on the basis of tax
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i-ates in effect or substantjatty in effect as at the reporting date, as wetl as-adjustments for income

tax of prior years. Deferred tix is recognized with respect to temporary differences arising between

book vatue of the assets and tiabitities- assessed in order to book them in the financiaI statements

and their tax base. Deferred tax is not recognized with respect to the fottowing temporary

differences: differences retating to goodwitt boo-klng in the financiaI statements and not reducing

the taxabte base; differ"n."r r6tutirig to assets unO tluUitities initiat presentation of which affects

neither accounting-nor taxabte profit-; as wetl as temporary differences retating to investments in

subsidiaries, where a parent company is abte to control i tlme of reatization of the mentioned

differences and there is certainty that those temporary differences witt not be reatized in the

foreseeabte future. An amount of deferred tax is assessed based on the tax rates, which witt be

apptied in the future, at recovery of temporary differences based on the laws in effect or

substantiatty in effect as at the reporting date'

Catcutation of deferred tax assets and deferred

a way in which the Bank is ptanning to recover o

end of the reporting period. Deferred tax asset

profit with respect to which respective temp
'be 

reatized is highty probabte. An amount of
respective tax benefits is not probabte anymore'

(l)Recognitionofincomesandexpensesinthefinancialstatement!;

lnterest incomes and expenses are booked as parts of profit or [os,s using the effective interest rate

method.

Credits arrangement fees, credits service fees and other fees considered as integraI parts of totaI

return on credits, as wetl as respective costs for transactions are booked as deferred incomes and

depreciated as inierest incomes during expected term of a financial instrument using the effective

interest rate method.

The other fees, as wetl as the other incomes and expenses are booked, when respective service is

atreadY Provided.
payments under the operating lease contracts are recognized as parts of profit or loss for the period

on a straight-tine basis throughout the lease term. An amount of received benefits reduces the total

amount oi e*penses for lease throughout the entire lease term.

(m) Segment statements

The banking operations are highty integrated

of conformance to the requirements of IFRS

concentrated in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, a

generated as the resutt of activities carried

kazakhstan' A person responsibte for making o

Management Board) shatl receive and anatyse i

(n) changes in the accounting poticy and principles of information disclosure

The adopted accounting poticy corresponds to the accounting poticy apptied in the previous

reporting year, with the exception of inftuence of apptication of the. fottowing revised standards

dated 1 January 2017. lnftuence of each amendment apptied to operations of the Bank is described

betow:

Amendments to IAS T,,Statement of cash Flows: Disctosure lnltiative". The amendments require

from the Bank to disclose the information facititating evaluation of change of a tiabitity as the resutt

of financiat activities, inctuding .frunc"r condition6d by cash l'tows and changes not conditioned

thereby.

Amendments to lA5 l2,,Recognition of deferred tax assets for unreatized losses". The amendments

ctarify that an entity need to evatuate wh

which deductions maY be made aPart

amendments ctarify the manner in which a
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resutts of activity of the Bank, as the Bank has not deductibte temporary differences or assets'

which are within scope of these amendments'

New standards and interpretations not effective yet

A number of new standards, amendments to the standards and int.erpretations are not effective as

at 31 December 2ol7 yet ana have not been apptied when preparing these financjal statements' out

of the mentioned new devetopments the fottowing standards, iamendments and interpretations

potentiatty may inftuence on activity of the Bank. The Bank is going to begin to appty the mentioned

stanOaras, amendments and interpretations starting from their effe'ctiveness'

IFRS 9 "Financia[ lnstruments"

IFRS 9 ,,FinanciaI lnstruments" pubtished in Juty 2014 reptaces existing IAS 39 "FinanciaI

lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement" and inctudes revlsed guidetines with respect to

ctassification and measurement of the financiaI assets, inctuding a new modeI of expected credit

losses to measure impairment and the new general requirements for hedging accounting'

Ctassification and measurement

IFRS 9 contains three basic measurement categories of the financial assets: measured at amortized

cost, measured at fair vatue through other c-omprehensive incorne (FVOCI) and measured at fair

vatue through profit or loss (FVTPL). Under IFRS 9, classificatiorr of the financial assets is mainty

determined based on a business model in the context of which a financial asset and characteristics

of contractual cash ftows are controtted. The standard abotishes tfre category of the financial assets

appticabte in IAS 39: financial assets hetd to m

financiaI assets avaitabte for sate' Under IFRS

principat contract representing a financial a

from a principaI contract. lnstead, the e
classifjcation'Theequityinstrumentsaremeasuredatfairvalue.

IFRS 9 considerabty retains existing requirements of IAS 39 as reglards ctassification of the financial

tiabitities. Furthermore, in accordance with IAS 39 atl changes in fair vatue of financia[ tiabitities

ctassified as measured ut rul1. vatue through profit or loss are rer:ognized as parts of profit or [oss,

while in accordance with IFRS g those changes are recognized in g'eneral as fottows:

an amount representing a change of fair value of a financiaI tiabitity conditioned by changes in

credit risk on such a tiaUitity is iecognized as part of the other comprehensive income;

remaining amount of change of fair vatue of a tiabitity is recognized as part of profit or [oss'

lmpairment

IFRS 9 reptaces the "incurred losses" modeI

The new impairment model is apptied to the

the accounts receivabte on lease, some [i
contracts. The new i

of profit or loss on
Under IFRS 9, an am

defautt events on a e within 12 months after the reporting
sutt of atl possibte defautt events on a

L over the entire term")' An amount of

tty i:; equat to amount of 12-month ECL

counts receivabte on lease, assets under a contract
ncial assets (POCI assets)). ln case of significant

nt after initiat recognition the loss atlowance is

recognized in the amount of ECL over the entire term'

The financiaI assets on which 12-month ECL are recognized retate to stage 1; the financiaI assets on

which significant increase of credit riskifter initiat lecognition is evidenced, but on which there is

no defautt event retate to stage 2; and the financial assets orr which there is a defautt event or

which anyvvay are credit-impaired retate to stage 3'

Measurement of expected credit losses

must represent time vatue of money an

be obtained without excess expenditur
and forecasts of future economic conditions'

under IAS 39 and resutts in increase in votati
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loss attowance, since expected impairment losses on atl financial assets witt be measured at [east in

the amount of 12-month ECL and an aggregate of the financial assets on which ECL over the entire
term witl be measured witt be, with high probabitity, in excess of an aggregate of the financial

assets with reveated objective evidences of impairment under IAS 39.

The expected credit losses with high probabitity witt be catcutated orr the basis of an approach (at

least with respect to some portfotios) depending on a type of an itent exposed to credit risk, stage

to which an item retates under IFRS 9, measurement on a case-by-case or group basis, etc.

(iii) Hedgingaccounting

Requirements for general procedure for hedging accounting are aimed at simptification of hedging

accounting, bettei harmonization of hedging accounting and strategies of risk management. The

standard does not contain direct instructions with respect to macro-hedging accounting, which is

considered in the context of a separate project. IFRS 9 provide:; for setection of the accounting

poticy with respect to the Bank's abitity to continue to account for hedging in accordance with IAS

39.

(iv) Transition to IFRS 9

Requirements for ctassification and measurement, as wetI as impairment in generaI are apptied

retrospectivety (subject to specific exemptions) by adjusting an opening batance of retained profit

and provisions as of a date of initiat apptication. The standard doe:; not contain the requirements for

recatcutation of comparabte data for the prior periods'

IFRS 9 becomes effective for the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Earty apptication of the standard is attowed.

The Bank has transited to IFRS 9 within fixed terms, at the moment the Bank is compteting technica[

imptementation of the business requirements for making changes irr the methods and accounting.

IFRS't6 "Lease"

IFRS 16 reptaces appticabte guidelines with respect to lease, inctuding IAS 17 "Lease", IFRIC

lnterpretation 4 ,,Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease", SIC lnterpretation 15

,,Operating Leases - lncentivei", and SIC lnterpretation 27 "Evatuating the Substance of Transactions

in tfre Legat Form of a Lease". The new standard abotishes double accounting model appticabte at

the present time in the lessee accounting. This modet requires ctassifying a lease as financial lease

booked jn the batance sheet and operating lease accounted for off batance sheet. lnstead of it, a

unified accounting model assuming lease booking in the batance sheet and simitar to accounting for

financia[ lease efiective at the present time is introduced. For the lessors the accounting rutes in

effect at the present time generatty remain unchanged: the [essors witl continue to ctassify lease as

financiaI and operating. IFRS 16 becomes effective for the annuaI reporting periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2019.tarty apptication of the standard is attowed provided that IFRS l5 "Revenue

from Contracts with Customers" witt be apptied, as wett. The Barrk is not going to earty appty that

standard. The Bank js evatuating possibte inftuence of IFRS 16 on the financial statements.

The Bank did not appty the fottowing new and revised IFRS issued, but not effective yet:

ln May 20'17 the new standard - IFRS lT "lnsurance Contracts" has been issued, which standard

reptaies IFRS 4,,lnsurance Contracts" since 1 January 2021. IFRS 17 requires insurance liabitities to

be measured at a current futfitment value and provides a more uniform measurement and

presentation approach for atl insurance contracts. These requirements are designated to achieve the

purpose of consistent principte-based insurance contracts accounting. lt is not possible to evatuate

inftuence of apptication of IFRS 17 before detailed anatysis is madr: by the management.

Other changes

The fottowjng new standards or amendments to the standards wilt not have, as expected, significant

inftuence on the financial statements of the Bank:

- ,,project to review the requirements for disctosures" (amendments to IAS 7 "statement of Cash

Ftows");

- Recognition of deferred tax assets for unused tax loss carny-forwards (amendments to IAS 12

"lncome Taxes");

- IFRS 15
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Net interest incomes

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

thggt1dlqgL thousand tenge

lnterest incomes
Credits granted to customers
Cash and cash equivatents
Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other
financiaI institutions
FinanciaI assets avaitabte for sate

lnterest exPenses
Current accounts and deposits of customers
Accounts and deposits of banks and other financiaI institutions
Subordinated bonds and issued debt securities
Accounts payabte on REPO transactions

lssue of guarantees and opening letters of credit
Cash transactions
Settlement transactions
Foreign exchange transactions
Credit arrangement fee
Fee on MasterCard
Other

Fee expenses

Transfer oPerations
Trust operations
Expenses on MasterCard
Attribution amounts on transactions using payment

cards to exPenses
Expenses on custodiaI activitY
Other

141,002 173,85?l'+lrU\JZ ttJrvJL

---al.9{6s4i.

76,777,723
5,019,491
2,197,816

21,040,555
5,203,727

562,716

(17 ,597 ,707\
(2,136,863)

(15,297,663)
(4,011,340)

(614,209)

_ (14, s36) (3,]911

-_!1j$1g! (1 e,e4rs_e!)

Different items of interest incomes for the period ended on 31 December 2017 inctudes the total

amount equal to 4,774,011 thousand tenge (31 December 2016:4,187,764 thousand tenge) accrued

on impaired financia[ assets.

The interest expenses on current accounts and deposits for the period ended o111-December 2017

inctude expenses on-u!"n.y fees in the amount of 592,362 thousand tenge (31 December 2016:

Z,gO4,ZOl ihousand tenle), which directty retate to attraction of the mentioned deposits'

Fee incomes
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge

-1,6T9ffi

192,119
166,323
131,640

278
1,117,175

606,687 162,239

+

31 Decermber 2017
thouseFlenge

(142,837\
(22,000)

(759,672)

14,381,931 7.059,250latJgltTJt 
"vJ'rL'Y

257,901
218,790
132,846

168

31 December 2016
thousand tenge

(63,930)
(9,520)

Net profit from foreign exchange transactions

Net profit from sport transactions
Net ioss from revatuation of financial assets and

tiabitities

(636,642)
(323,435)(47,48s1 ,(109,?9?l@ (474,4191

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge____764_3ffi

(275,323) (723,379)
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Other operating incomes/expenses, net

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thou

Other operating incomes
Penatties and fines
Fee on MasterCard
Recovery of overpayment under return for 2015

Other

Other operating exPenses
Appraising services
Cottection agency services
Subscriptions and information services
lnventories, FA and lA write-off
Corporate events
Expenses on Cash back function
Rating agency seryices
Penatties and fines

Charity
Customer base maintenance
Legat services
Courier seryices
Air ticket Purchase
Other

lmpairment loss

Credits granted to customers
Other assets
Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other
financiaI institutions

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

6,524,097
63,974
70,073

242,245

328,064 36,803

(779,640)

{37,367)
(55,3'15)

(363,467)
(3 3,932)

(686,632)
(7,349)

(167 ,551)
(2,000)

(201,487\
(178,432)
(116,174)
(105,777 )

(104,997)
(36,069)
(19,837)

(275)

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

-
(1 ,823,754) (361 ,290)

(1,611) 4,421

-
The information about changes in measurements and assumptions retating to-impairment of credits

granted to customers is disltosed in note 17 , as the mentionecl changes inftuenced on profit for

2017.

1O Expenses for Personnel

Emptoyees' benefits
Satary taxes

11 Other general administrative expenses

ProfessionaI seryices
Expenses on oPerating lease

Deterioration and dePreciation
Advertisement and marketi ng

Taxes other than income tax
Communication services and information services

Travetting exPenses
lnsurance
SecuritY

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

-
(936,738) (821,977)
(901,490) (562,954\

(1,226,341) (337 ,2091
(998 ,299\ (31 7, 1 59 )
(3'13,533)
(187 ,414)
(358,826)
(118,778\

(146,757)
(1 10,389)

(81,577)
(79,686)

28

(1 ,021 ,913)
(185,349)
(160,939)

(63,174)
(282,359 30,176

3,346,9 993,224

thousand
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12

Transportation exPenses
Utitity and cteaning exPenses

Repair and technicaI maintenance
Cottection seryices
Representation exPenses
Trainings
Other

Expense on income tax

Expense on current income tax
Expense/(saving) on deferred income tax

lncome before taxes
Frxed rate
Estimated amount of tax at fixed rate
Non-deductibte expenses/ (tax expenses not taken into

account in the accounting records)

Total tax

At the beginning of the Period
Recognized in comprehensive income

Recognized in caPitaI
At the end of the Period

3'l December 2017 3l December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

-

(79,461).
(50,891 )
(39,056)
(10,4771
(6,474)

@W
_)9-8p4r,126\$,2r93ge)

31 Decermber 2017 31 December 2016
tnousana tenee ft'ousa?felel';;,

(78,376)
(63,067)
(14,77 6)

68e)

183,799 (206,497)

,689

Reconcitiation between accounting and tax profits for twetve months ended on 31 December 2017

and 31 December 20't6 is given betow:

31 Decrember 2017 31 December 2016
thorusand tenge thousand tenge

Z0% 20%

-

-(oq,o8g) 

$74,3751

-.
The temporary differences arising between book vatue of assets and tiabitities booked in the

financial statements ind amountl used to calcutate taxable base resutt in appearance of net

deferred tax tiabitities as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016' Deferred tax assets are

booked in these financiat statements. The future tax benefits nnay onty be received' if the Bank

earns profit against which unused tax loss may be set off and..un[ess the tegistation of the Repubtic

of Kazakhstan witt oe crrangeo with adverse inrtur nce on abitity of the Bank to use the mentioned

benefits in the future Periods.

change of amount of the temporary differences during the years ended on 31 December 2017 and 31

December 2016 may be presented as fottows'

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

__t!grr""a t""e" th"rt.
Fixed and intangibte assets 

- 
(,f944346) (318'751)

Accounts and deposits of banks and other financial 52'297 80''t00

institutions
Other
Tax loss carried forward to the future periods

1 16,908

Movements in deferred tax assets and tiabitities for twetve months ended on 31 December 2017 and

31 December 2016 are presented betow:

31 De,cember 201 7 31 December 201 6

thrrusand tenge thousand tenge

(99,689) (82,206)

(

138,202
306,714

1,447 ,133

29
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Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

7,81O,O79 4,42O,1O4

12,356,847 1O0,479,649

9,164,23; 1 ,697 ,84;3'474'01' 
''ti3;331457,187 768,750

13,045,428 4,394,006
12,000,000 23,oo7,o28

'l ,198,188
2,094,933

1,1 98,1 88 2,084,833

,652

The credit ratings are presented in accordance with the standards; of the rating agency Standard &
Poor's or the simitar standards of the other international rating age'ncies.

None of items of cash and cash equivatents is impaired or overdue.

As at 3't December 2017, the Bank has had one bank the interest o1'which exceeds 10% of capitat (31

December 2016: 1 bank). As at 31 December 2017, the balance amounted to 5,400,814 thousand
tenge (31 December 2016: batance was equatto 123,486,677 thousand tenge).

For the period from22 August to 31 December 2017 the Bank concluded reverse REPO contracts with
"Kazakhstan Stock Exchange" JSC to the amount of 19,101,662 thousand tenge. The return accrued

on those transactions amounted to 120,704 thousand tenge'

a) Accepted collateral

As at 31 December 2017, the fair vatue of securities representing cottateral on reverse REPO

transactions was equal to: corporate bonds and bonds of the second tier banks to the amount of
5,266,799 thousand tenge, shares of legatentities to the amount of 13,955,567 thousand tenge.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair vatue of securities representing cotlateral on reverse REPO

transactions was equaI to: bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan to the
amount of 296,467 thousand tenge, corporate bonds to the amount of 50,533 thousand tenge, as

wettas shares of tegat entities and second tier banks to the amount of 4,369,614 thousand tenge.

Requirements for minimaI provisions

MinimaI provisions are catcutated in accordance with the regutatory acts issued by the RK NB and

must be maintained equal to the average amount of cash on han,C and batance on current account
with the RK NB for four weeks to be catculated as a fixed minimal [eve[ of deposits and batances on

current accounts of customers being residents and non-residents of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, as

wetI as the other tiabitities of the Bank. As at 3't December7017, the minimaI provision amounted to
4,760,281 thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 4,982,951 thousand tenge).

Cash on hand
Cash equivalents
Nostro accounts with RK NB

Nostro accounts with other banks
- having credit rating from A- to A+
- having credit rating from BB- to BB+
- having credit rating from B- to B+
- having credit rating betow B-
- without credit rating
Total Nostro accounts with other banks
Term deposits with RK NB

Term deposits with other banks
- having credit rating from A- to A+
- having credit rating from B- to B+

Total term deposits with other banks
Reverse REPO transactions
- without credit rating
TotaI cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents

19,222,366
57,822,829
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decen'ber 2017, thousand tenge

Financial instruments measured at fair value the changes in whir:h are booked as parts of profit

or [oss

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Debt and other financial instruments with fixed return
- Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Repubtic of

Kazakhstan
Equity instruments
- Shares in "standard" lnsurance Company" JSC

- Shares in "Kcett" JSC

Total financial instruments measured at fair value the
changes in which are booked as parts of profit or loss

15 FinanciaI assets available for sale

Debt and other financial instruments with fixed return
- Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Repubtic of

51 8,348

4,083,935
3,343,001

-

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousandlengs

16 Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other financial institutions

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Deposits with banks
- having credit rating from B- to B+

Credits granted to other financial institutions
- without credit rating
Total credits granted to other financiaI institutions
Provision for imPairment
Credits granted to other financiaI institutions less

provision for imPairment

The fottowing tabte contains anatysis of change of

advances granted/paid to banks and other financial

December 2016 and2017:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Amountofprovisionforimpairmentatthebeginnigof-T9,079
the year
Net recovery of provision for impairment
Use

Amount of provision for impairment at the end of the
year

1,610

Kazakhstan
- Bonds of "Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan" JSC

- Bonds of "Freedom Finance" JSC

- Bonds of "SAT&ComPanY" JSC

Equity instruments
- Shares in "Qazaq Banki" JSC

Total financial assets available for sale

None financial assets avaitabte for sate are impaired or overdue.

277,842 !44,0=0!

- 

n7,842 344,006
(1,6671 (69)

276,175 343,937

-
the provision for impairment on credits and

institutiorrs for twetve months ended on 31

203,31 5

273,475

474,010

1,254,309
979,175

(4,421)
(12) (4,589)
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17 Credits granted to customers

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thou:;and tenge thousand tenge

rCredits granted to corporate customers

Credits granted to major corporate customers

Credits granted to smatl and medium business entities

Total credits granted to corporate customers

Credits granted to retail customers

Mortgage credits
Consumer credits
Credits to purchase cars

Other

Total credits granted to retaiI customers

Credits granted to customers before provision for
impairment
Provision for imPairment

Credits granted to customers less provision for
impairment

154,856,939 143,677,426

169,889,325 181,668,650

18,41 5,031

136,441,908

31,170,157
117,507,269

10,445,161

1 3,585,564
3,134

1 ,803 ,7 14

1810,694,512

( 1 0,805,1 87)

9,776,487

32,074,115
7,971

2,738,222

188,269,171

(6,600,521)

The tabte betow contains anatysis of change of the provision

credits granted to customers for twetve months ended on 31

for impairment broken down by types of
Decernber 2017:

Credits granted Credits granted Total
thousandto corporate

customers
to retail

thousand tenge thousarld lelg-e

-inu@8 
912,623 6,600,571

Amount of provision for impairment at the

beginning of the Year
Net (recovery) formation of provision for
impairment
Write-off
Effect of foreign exchange rates

Amount of provision for impairment at the
end of the Year

impairment
Write-off
Effect of foreign exchange rates

Amount of provision for impairment at the
end of the Year

customers tenge

2,718,17 4 2,329,083 5,047,257

Credits granted Credits granted Total
thousandto corporate

customers
to retail

customers tenge

(897,1 36) 12,961 (884,175 )

84,251 )42.,6_!!) ,= =!!,?g_!,-l,sgl;w 

- 
3,212,000 10,805,187

The tabte betow contains analysis of change of the provision for innpairment broken down by types of

credits granted to customers for the year ended on 31 December 11016:

thousand tenge thousand tenge

Amount of provision for impairment at the 
tffi

beginning of the Year
Net (recovery) formation of provision for (705,7851 873,843 ',1',18,058

(1 ,323,552) (149,544) (1,473,096)

(3e,382) \5,7=,e::) = \ef:-:3|!)

-5,6g7,g9d 

-- 912,623 6,600,521
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(a) Quality of credits granted to customers

The table betow presents the information about quatity of credi[s granted to customers as at 31
December 2017:

Credits before Credits less
provision for Provision for provision for
impairment impairment impairment

thousand tenge thousand tenge thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment against
amount of credits

before provision for
impairment

o/lo

Credits granted to corporate
customers
Credits granted to major
corporate customers
Credits without individuaI
evidences of impairment
lmpaired credits:
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for more than 360 days

TotaI impaired credits
TotaI credits granted to
major corporate customers
Credits granted to small and
medium business entities
Credits without individuaI
evidences of impairment
lmpaired credits:
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360 days

TotaI impaired credits
Total credits granted to
small and medium business
entities
TotaI credits granted to
corporate customers

16,755,219 (2,114,540\ 14,640,679

1 ,659,912

10,633,916
1 ,569,339
4,429,049

127,917

(9,9 59 )

(1,797 ,269)
(314)

(294,194)
(27,764)

1 ,649,853

9,936,649
1,569,024
4,134,954

'1 00,1 53

0.60

'16.90

0.02
6.64

1 8.52

12.62

18,415,O31 (2,124,499) 16,29O,532 11.54

64,907,825

51,437,643
9,632,194
5,964,566
1,481,962

932,745

3,094,973

(385,504)

(3,415,169)
(31,771)

(714,026)
(370,372)
(104,965)

(446,880 )

64,522,321

48,022,474

9,600,423
5,250,540
1,111,590

827,780
2,639,093

0.59

6.64
0.37

11.97

74.99

11.25

14.49
71,534,093 (5,083,1 g3) 66,450,900 7.11

136,441,9O8 (5,469,697\ 130,973,221 4.O1

154,856,939 (7,593,'186) 147,263,753 4.90
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Credits before
provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment against

Credits less amount of credits
provision for before provision
impairment for impairment
thousand

tenge %

Credits granted to retail
customers
Mortgage credits
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 180-360 days
- due for more than 360 days
Total mortgage credits
Consumer credits
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 180-360 days
- due for more than 360 days
Total consumer credits
Credits to purchase cars
- undue
Total credits to purchaser
cars
Other credits granted to
retaiI customers
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 1 B0-360 days
- due for more than 360 days
Total other credits granted
to retail customers
TotaI credits granted to
retail customers
Total credits granted to
customers

1,803,714 (133,744') 1,669,97O

g,g76,ggg

1 ,510,190
371,533
240,423
547,164

1,039,265
1 3,585,

(51,'180)
('14,036)
( 5 5,886 )

(130,246)
(328,711)

307,208

(1,753,299)
(40,627)
(74,3661

('102,981 )
(170,319)

7,640,340
716,258
439,252
221,303
397,321

9,1 23,690
1 ,469,569

297,167
137,442
376,845
732,057

11,136,769

7,691,520
730,294
495,'138
351,549
726,032

0.67
1.97

11.29
37.05
45.28

17.75
2.69

20.02
42.83
31 .13
29.56
18.02

450,628 (49,403) 401,225 10.96
10,445,161 (629,4621 9,g15,699 6.03

134 3,134 0.00

134 3,134 0.00

929,869
670,234

3,992
4,913

176,019

(178,409)
(2e1)

(400)
(4,644)

801,460
669,943

3,992
4,413

171,375
18,797

13.81
0.04

8.32
2.64
0.0018,797

7.41

25,837,573 (3,212,0011 22,625,572 12.43

180,694,512 (10,805,187) 169 889 325 s.98
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The tabte below presents the information about quatity of credits granted to customers as at 31
December 201 6:

Credits before
provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Credits less
provision for
impairment

tlhousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

against amount
of credits before

provision for
impairment

ulo
Credits granted to
corporate customers
Credits granted to major
corporate customers
Credits without individuat
evidences of impairment
lmpaired credits:
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360
days
TotaI impaired credits
Total credits granted to
major corporate customers
Credits granted to small
and medium business
entities
Credits without individuaI
evidences of impairment
lmpaired credits:
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360
days
Total impaired credits
Total credits granted to
smalI and medium business
entities

0.92

10.08
8.68

13.54
33.96
23.91

0.02
11.78

12,481,360

15,114,666
1,441 ,091

274,367

(74,888)

(757,864)
(288)
(ss)

(591,600)

12,406,472

14,856,802
1,440,903
274,312

0.60

1.71
0.02
0.02

31.83
4.55

245 2.97

77,495,342

19,234,709
4,626,016
3,692,923

1gz,54g
2,466,717

55,917
34,289,498 248,724

112 507 269 107,744,066

137,989,529

4.23
Total credits granted to
corporate customers 143,677,426 3.96

(849,907) _ 17,838,990

31 170 157 (924,695)

78,217,771

21,390,015
5,065,563
4,259,609

276,440
3,741,949

55,923

(722,429)

(2,155,307)
(439,547\
(576,785)

(93,892 )

(775,232)

(4,763,203)

(5,687,899)

(4,040,774\
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Credits granted to retail
customers
Mortgage credits
- undue
- due for [ess than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360
days

TotaI mortgage credits
Consumer credits
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for '180-360 days
- due for more than 360
days

Total consumer credits
Credits to purchase cars
- undue
Total credits to purchase
cars
Other credits granted to
retail customers
- undue
- due for [ess than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360
days

Total other credits granted
to retail customers
Total credits granted to
retail customers
Total credits granted to
customers

Credits before
provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

7,622,901
683,623
436,947
474,921
427,949

130,147
9.776.487

24,933,095
5,006,765

605,723
383,042
571,991

573,499
32,074,115 (800,1 80)

2,921

Credits less
provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

against amount
of credits before

provision for
impairment

o,
l\

(2,135)
(9,979)
(8,1 60)

(29,736)
(37,593 )

7,620,766
673,644
478,787
445,195
390,355

0.03
1.46
1.87
6.26
8.78

8.09
1.00

(256,024)
(36,709)

(106,422\
(100,082)
(164,768)

(136,175)

24,677,071
4,970,056

499,301
292,960
407,223

437,324
31,273,935

2,921

1.03
0.73

17.57
26.13
28.81

23.74
2.49

0.00

2.921 2,921 0.00

2,494,199
194,695

17 ,694
22,796

1 8,848

2,738,222

44,591 745

(5,501 )

(1,542)
(3,687)
(1,760)

(1,8't8)

( 1 4,308)

(912,6231

2,479,699
1 93,1 53

14,007
21,036

17,030

0.22
0.79

20.84
7.72

9.65

2.723.914 o.52

43,679,122 2.0s

188,269,171 (6,600,521) _ 181,668,650 3.51

During '12 months of the years 2017 and 2016 the Bank granted the consumer credits to natural
persons secured with cash in the form of deposits. As at 3'1 December 2017, those credits amounted
to 1,011,079 thousand tenge (31 December 7016: 16 665 305 thousand tenge). Those credits are
short-term credits maturing within 12 months.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the credit portfotio inctuded the credits granted to
corporate and retaiI customers the terms and conditions of which were changed, subject to retations
with the customers and maximization of an amount of debt repayabte. The credits the terms of
which have been changed are inctuded in the tabtes above into the category of assets without
individuaI evidences of impairment with the exception of cases, ,/r'here a borrower fails to comply
with the new conditions of contracts.

As at 31 December 2017, about 23% (31 December 2016: about 29iY") of the Bank's corporate credits
were designated to finance companies being at the initial stage or for such projects as construction
of assets, which are not put into operation yet. Before granting those credits, the Bank evatuates
viabitity of the projects and requires providing a ptedge. The Bank atso controts the progress of
implementation of such projects in accordance with initiat budge,ts thereof and it betieves that it
has reasonabty evatuated the future cash ftows, vrhich witl res;utt from those credits as at 31
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December 2017 and 3'1 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017,11% of att credits granted to the
above-mentioned companies are repaid.

As at 31 December 2017, 49% of atl projects being at injtiat stage of construction are put into
operation as at 31 December 2016 or are at the stage of constructi(on comptetion.

As at 3'1 December 2017, the management found out evidences of impairment in about 56.91% of the
portfotio of corporate credits of the Bank (31 December 2016:35%',1. Such indicators arise mainty due
to detays of the borrowers in their futfitment of contractua[ obligations to the Bank or due to
worsening of the financial status of the borrowers. The most of those impaired credits were secured
with ptedges, inctuding cash deposits, property, land or other lelss liquid assets. Potentiat future
revenue from disposal of such security was measured by the Bzrnk with the participation of the
independent appraising companies and this was the key assumption, which affects measurement of
impaired credits.

Key assumptions and judgements when evaluating impairment of credits

Credits granted to corporate customers

The Bank evatuates the provision for impairment of loans granted 1to the corporate customers on the
basis of the analysis of catcutated future cash flows on loans with individuaI evidences of
impairment. When assessing an amount of the provision for impairment on [oans without individual
evidences of impairment, the management based on the [eve[ of lo,sses actually incurred in the past.

When assessing an amount of the provision for impairment of credits granted to the corporate
customers, the management made the fottowing assumptions:

-theannua[ [evelof incurredlosseswasequatto0.59%- 0.60%(31 December20'16: 0.60%-0.92%\;
- delay in earning revenue from disposal of a security - 6-18 months.

Changes in the above evatuations may influence on amount of the provision for impairment of the
credits. For exampte, in case of change of an amount of net present vatue of expected cash flows by
ptus/minus one percent the amount of the provision for impairment of the credits granted to the
corporate customers as at 31 .12.2017 would be 1,479,638 thousand tenge more/tess (31 December
2016: 1 , 379,895 thousand tenge [ess/more).

Credits granted to retail customers

The Bank evatuates the provision for impairment of loans granted to retaiI customers on the basis of
the past experience of incurred actual losses on those types of the credits and measurement of
expected amount of compensation from disposaI of a collaterat.

Material assumptions used by the management when assessing an amount of the provision for
impairment of the credits granted to retaiI customers inctude the following:

- [eve[ of migration of losses is fixed and it may be determined on the basis of the model of
migration of incurred actual losses for the previous 12 months;

- with respect to mortgage and consumer credits detay in earning revenue from disposaI of security
with respect to mortgage and consumer credits is 18 months (property).

Changes in the above evaluations may inftuence on amount of the provision for impairment of the
credits. For exampte, in case of change of amount of the net pre:ient vatue of expected cash ftows
by ptusiminus one percent the amount of the provision for impairment of the credits granted to
corporate customers as at 31 .12.2017 woutd be 726,256 thousand tenge more/tess (31 December
2016: 436,79'1 thousand tenge [ess/more).

Analysis of security

Credits granted to corporate customers

The credits granted to corporate customers shat[ be evatuated on individuaI basis and tested for
impairment. The overatI creditworthiness of a corporate customer usuatly is the most important
indicator of quatity of a credit granted to it. Neverthetess, security represents additional guarantees
and, as a rute, the Bank requests the corporate borrowers to provide the same.

(c)

(i)
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The fottowing tabte contains anatysis of security of the
provision for impairment, broken down by types of
December 20'16:

31 December
2017

thousand

Mixed type
lmmovabte property
Cash deposits

credits granted to corporate customers less
security as at 31 December 2017 and 31

31 December
2016

% of credit thousand % of credit

38.88
23.56
6.84

Land plots and rights to temporary use 12,575,243 8,54
Equipment
Cash received in the future
Construction in process
Rights of ctaim against third persons
Guarantee
Grain
Securities
Goods for sate
Other types of security
No cottateraI

,92.
30,840,804 20.94
11,206,981 7.61

2,31 3,501
5,797,736
5,679,730
3,199,446

17,609
1,011,139
'1,785,360

53,651,669
32,511,410
9,444,796

1 .57 5,177 ,870
3.94 '13,925,593

3 . 86 6 ,971 ,451
2.17 1,739,957
0.58 5,413,293
0.69 2,924,265
1,21 1,118,277

3.72
't0.09

5.05
1.26
3.97
2.12
0.81

647,711 0,44 545,893 0.40
854,830 0,58 2,943,632 2.13
780,574 0,53 1,671,532 1.22

147 ,263,752 100.00 137 ,gg9 ,529 1 00.00

The amounts stated I n the tabte above represent book value of the credits and optionatly present
the fair vatue of coItaterat. Mixed security inctudes items of immovabte property, property
comptexes, equipment, transport vehictes, land ptots, grain, guara,ntees, cash deposits, and other.

The credits granted to corporate customers, which are past due or impaired.

lmpaired or past due credits granted to corporate customers have security with the fair vatue of
207 ,621,702 (31 December 2016: 48,087 ,714 lhousand tenge).

Credits granted to corporate customers without individual evidernces of impairment

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of cash batances, whiclr are security of loans granted to
corporate customers, amounted to 6,579,531 thousand tenge (31 December 20'16: 9,444,796
thousand tenge).

With respect to the other credits granted to customers with the net book vatue of 66,172,174
thousand tenge (31 December 2016:80,457,018 thousand tenge), which are not past due or
impaired, the fair vatue of security was measured at the moment of issue of the credits and was not
adjusted for subsequent changes as at the reporting date. An opportunity to recover those credits
depends to a greater extent on creditworthiness of the borrowers rather than vatue of security, and
the current vatue of security does not inftuence on evaluation of irnpairment.

As at 31 December 2017, with respect to the credits granted to corporate customers with the book
vatue of 79,579,060 thousand tenge (31 December 7016: 42,134,573 thousand tenge), the
management thinks that the fair vatue of security is at least equal to their book value.

Received security

During twetve months ended on 3'l December 2017 the Bank purchased a number of assets through
acquisition of control of security of the credits granted to customers with the net book value of
28,619,169 thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 5,822,820 thousand tenge).

(ii) Credits granted to retail customers

Mortgage credits

The mortgage credits are secured with ptedge of respective real e:;tate.

The mortgage credits inctude the credits with the net book value of 1,603,889 thousand tenge (31

December 2016:909,531 thousand tenge), which are secured with ptedge the fair vatue of which is
less than net book value of separate credits. Fair vatue of security on the mentioned credits
amounted to '155,91'l thousand tenge (3'l December 2016:905,671 thousand tenge).
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With respect to the mortgage credits with the net book vatue of 8,211,810 thousand tenge (31
December 2016:8,768,821 thousand tenge) the management betieves that the fair vatue of security
at least is equal to book vatue of separate credits as at the reporting date.

The Bank updates assessed value of security obtained at the moment of issue of a credit to the
current value taking into consideration approximate changes in value of items of immovabte
property. The Bank makes speciaI separate evatuation of security as at each reporting date, in case
there are evidences of impairment.

During twelve months ended on 31 December 2017, the Bank purchased three portfolio of mortgage
credits from "Astana lpoteka" JSC (previous name - "lnvestment Astana Group" JSC) with the book
vatue of 2,005,3 67 thousand tenge. The Bank also bought back l.wo portfotios of mortgage credits
from "Kazakhstan Mortgage Company" lO" JSC with the book vatuer of 227 ,570 thousand tenge.

Consumer credits

The consumer credits are secured with ptedge of respective residential immovabte property.
According to the poticy of the Bank, the consumer credits are granted at maximal loan-to-value
ratios (ratio of market vatue of a ptedge to a loan value) as at a date of issue of a credit equal to
143% for the borrowers with confirmed sources of income and 200% - on credits of the borrowers
with non-confirmed sources of income. Thus, such consumer credits are secured with ptedge of
immovabte property [ike the mortgage loans.

The portfotio of consumer credits inctudes the credits with the net book vatue of 5,804,8'10 thousand
tenge (31 December 2016:15,517,665 thousand tenge), which were secured with the ptedge the fair
vatue of which was less than net book value of separate credits. The fair vatue of security on the
mentioned credits amounted to 2,189,365 thousand tenge (31 December 7016 7,458,645 thousand
tenge).

With respect to the consumer credits with the net book vatue of 5,091,672 thousand tenge (31
December 2016: 15,756,270 thousand tenge) the management betieves that the fair vatue of
security at least is equal to book vatue of separate credits as at th,e reporting date.

The Bank updates assessed vatue of security obtained at the mrrment of issue of a credit to the
current vatue taking into consideration approximate changes in value of items of immovabte
property. The Bank makes speciaI separate evatuation of security as at each reporting date, in case
there are evidences of impairment.

Other credits

The portfotio of consumer credits inctuded the credits with the nr:t book vatue of 716,150 thousand
tenge (31 December 2016:2,078,170 thousand tenge), which werr: secured with the ptedge the fair
value of which is less than net book vatue of separate credits. The fair vatue of security on the
mentioned credits amounted to 624,532 thousand tenge (31 December 2016:773,983 thousand
tenge ).

With respect to the other credits with the net book vatue of 956,955 thousand tenge (31 December
7016:645,744 thousand tenge) the management believes that the fair vatue of security at least is
equa[ to book value of separate credits as at the reporting date.

The Bank updates assessed vatue of security obtained at the moment of issue of a credit to the
current vatue taking into consideration approximate changes in vatue of items of immovabte
property. The Bank makes speciaI separate evaluation of security as at each reporting date, in case
there are evidences of impairment.
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17 Credits granted to customers, continued

(d) Analysis of the credit portfolio broken down by branches of economy and geographic
regions

The credits were granted mainly to the customers carrying ou1[ activity in the Republic of
Kazakhstan in the fottowing branches of economy:

31 Decembr:r 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Credits granted to retaiI customers
Trade
Agricutture, timber and wood-working industry
Production
Lease
FinanciaI services
Services relating to construction and instattation
works
Construction
LegaI services
Mining industry / metatlurgicaI industry
Logistic comptexes and transportation services
Mass media
ReaI estate
Factoring companies
Tourism
Micro-credit organizations
Research and technicaI activity
Other services
lndividuatservices
Activity (various)

Provision for impairment
169,889,325 181,668,650

(e) Concentration of credits granted to customers

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank had nine borrowers (31 December 2016: sixteen borrowers)
with the total balances on credits exceeding 10% of capita[. As at 31 December 2017 the totat
batances on the mentioned credits amounted to 61,880,923 thouszrnd tenge (31 December 2016:
77,661,670 thousand tenge).

(f) Credit repayment periods

The repayment periods of the credits composing the credit portlfotio as at the reporting date
are presented in Note 27(d) and represent the periods of time frclm the reporting dated to the
repayment dates under credit agreements. Considering short term of the credits granted by the
Bank, it is probabte that many of the mentioned credits witt be protonged. Accordingly, reaI
dates of repayment of the credits may substantiatty differ from dates of repayment provided
for by the credit agreements.

25,837 ,573
41,098,989
20,769,474
26,866,971
8,374,752
5,24o,gog

9,941 ,972
9,917 ,554

5,749,431
2,497,506
1,620,369
7:10,209

75,595
5,14,126
9,924,05 1

11,870,842
7,12,861
5<.)2,540

44,591,745
35,009,651
23,256,860
20,678,612
17,686,980
1 4,635,588

10,032,430
5,562,171
4,990,339
4,190,707
2,963,933
1,469,932
964,775
604,459
473,364
70,170

1,288,460

180,694,512 188,269,171
(10,805,187) (6,600,521)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

1 9 Other assets

31 December2017 31 December2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

15',673,777 7,323,439Accounts receivabte on sotd loans
Other accounts receivabte
Accrued fee incomes
Total other financiaI assets
Disposed assets
Accounts receivabte on guarantees
CapitaI expenditures
Prepayments
Prepaid taxes, besides income tax
Materiats and setttement of payments with
supptiersi providers
Overpaid tax on profit
Advances paid to employees
Settlement of payment son Reverse REPO

transactions with "Freedom Finance" JSC

Other
Provision for impairment
Total other non-financial assets
Total other assets

1,606,613 1,414,007
791 ,014 1 2, BB9

17,570,849 8,750,335
33 ,371,780 7 ,506,152
13i,670,254

1 ,579,366
993,221
863,688
210,324

188,412

1,712,177
(2,571 ,578\

5,668,442
3,732,699

618,300
289,530
169,840

99,135
97,985

187,447
(698,919)

(a)

50,017 ,644 17 ,670,611
67,,588,493 26,420,946

During the year ended on 31 December 2017, the Bank sotd a number of granted credits to two
companies - "SFK Recovery" LLP (to the amount of 9,568,185 thousand tenge) and "First
cotlection" Cottection Agency" LLP (to the amount of 3,544,719) thousand tenge). The above-
mentioned loans were sotd under the market conditions with considering by the management as

transactions between independent parties. During the period frorn December 2017 to March 2018
the tiabitities to the bank were repaid to the amount exceeding 12 bittion tenge by transfer of
assets in the form of immovabte property in favour of the Bank.

During the year ended on 31 December 2016 the Bank sotd a number of granted credits to two
companies - "Nexum" Legal Company" LLP and "lspotnenie" LLP. The above-mentioned loans
were sold under the market conditions with considering by thr: management as transactions
between independent parties. The companies provided sufficient evidences of abitity to repay
the accounts receivable and they provided coltaterat. The acr:ounts receivable is repaid in
accordance with the prescribed schedutes that is a conctusive ervidence of abitity of "Nexum"
Legal Firm" LLP and "lspotnenie" LLP to repay outstanding accounts receivable to the Bank untiI
the end of 2018.

As at 31 December 2017,478 items are recorded in the balance shreet as parts of items "Disposed
assets". The management prepares a ptan for disposing of the mentioned property for the year
201 8.

Analysis of change of the provision for impairment

The tabte betow contains anatysis of change of the provision for impairment for twetve months
ended on 31 December 2017 and7016:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Amount of provision for impairment at the beginning
of the year
Net creation (recovery) of provision for impairment
Use

Amount of provision for impairment at the end of
the year 698,919

698,919
1,823,754

(1,095)

2,521,578

349,617
361,290
(11,988)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

Accounts and deposits of banks and other financial institutions
31 Decemb er 2017 31 December 20'l 6

thousand tenge thousand tenge_

17,167,554 25,088,365

21

Credits
Term deposits
LORO accounts

2,930,295 6,011,565

20,097,849 31,099,930

The above-mentioned credits include amounts received from "'Damu" Business Devetopment

Fund" JSC under the Program of conventional ptacement of funds, with the second tier banks for

the purpose of subsequent credit granting to the sma[[ and medium business entities to the total
amount'of 3,151,g74 thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 3,328,806 thousand tenge); from
,,KazAgro" National Management Holding" JSC under the agro-industrial financing program to the

total imount of 5,882,30i thousand tenge (31 December 2016:6,754,465 thousand tenge); from
,,Agrarian Credit Corporation" JSC to the total amount of l],133,372 thousand tenge (31

December 2016: 9,443,232 thousand tenge)'

The term deposits inctude the deposits from "Zhitstroisberbank" JSC to the amount of 2,930,294

thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 4,218,029 thousand tenge), SB "Bank Home Credit" JSC to

the amount oi 0 thousand tenge (31 December 201 6: 1 ,000,939 thousand tenge).

Current accounts and deposits of customers
31 Decemher 2017 31 December 2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge

Current accounts and deposits on demand
- RetaiI customers
- Corporate customers
Term deposits
- RetaiI customers
- Corporate customers

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank has had eight customers (31 December 2016: fourteen

customers) the accounts and deposits of which have exceeded 1Ct% of capitat. As at 30 December

20'17 the total balances on the accounts and deposits of the nrentioned customers amount to
j46,096,242 thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 191,058,457 thousand tenge). The current

accounti and deposits on demand of the corporate customers inctude deposit from one

counterparty to the amount of 88,658,705 thousand tenge, which may be withdrawn on demand'

As at 31 December 2017, the deposits of the Bank's customers to the total amountof 6,194,724

thousand tenge (31 December 2016:26,165,197 thousand tenge) were the security of discharge

of tiabitities on credits and off-batance credit instruments issued by the Bank.

Accounts payable on REPO transactions

On 31 December 2017 the Bank conctuded REPO transactions with "Kazakhstan Stock Exchange"

JSC to the amount of 641,658 thousand tenge.

Other tiabilities

31,367 ,845
17!i,471 ,296

3l),760,641

11,294,929
130,142,781

32,718,441

22

23

),211,063 121,426,306

____297,=810,845 295,5n,457

31 December 2017 31 December 20'16

thousand tenge thousand tengg
7 ,400 1 ,409,651Letters of credit and financiat guarantees

Accounts payabte to emPtoYees
Charged operating exPenses
Other creditors on banking activity
TotaI other financial liabilities
Prepayments on banking operations
Provision for leaves
Accounts payabte on other taxes
Other non-financiaI tiabitities
Total other non-financial liabi lities
Total other tiabitities

34,258
381,771

177,877
116,009
342,290

3,137
306,232
265,676

177 ,094
88,943

144,377
3,208,595
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

Share capital

lssued capital

As at 3'l December 2017, the stated share capitaI consisted of 100,000,000 shares (31 December

ZOj6:32,000,000 shares), the issued and futty paid share capitat consisted of 36,081,627 shares

(31 December 20]6:76,887,601 shares). The shares have no par v;llue. For 17 months of the year

iOtZ tfr" Bank purchased 30,636 own ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2017, there were no

shares purchased by the Bank (31 December 2016:2,851,199 shares). The owners of ordinary

shares are entitted to obtain dividends as far as they are dectared, as wetI as they have the right

to one vote per a share at the annual and genera[ meetings of sharehotders of the Bank.

Provision for revaluation of financial assets available for sale

provision for revatuation of financial assets avaitabte for sate inctr.rdes accumutated net change of

fair vatue untiI derecognition of assets or impairment thereof .

Dividends

ln accordance with the tegistation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, amount of provisions of the

Bank avaitabte for distribution is timited to amount of retained profit booked in the financiaI

statements of the Bank prepared in accordance with the IFRS or the amount of net profit for the

current year, in case of'accumutated loss carried forward to the next period. Distribution is not

attowed, in case the amount of equity capitat becomes negativre or distribution of net income

results in insotvency or bankruptcy of the Bank.

During twetve months ended on 31 December 2017 the dividends were not dectared.

Trades in shares ofthe Bankon MoscowStock Exchange began on 14 December7017. Thus, the

Bank became the first Kazakhstan bank the shares of which were admitted to trades on Moscow

Stock Exchange and entered into the third tevet quotation [ist rcn 4 December 2017. The Bank

entered with the secondary pubtic offer of shares (SPO) on the MOEX in order to raise foreign

capitat. As a resutt, during the period from 5 to '12 December 7017 more than 750 proposats were

made by natural persons ind tegat entities to the amount exceerding 650 mittion roubtes' 2 881

835 shares of the new Bank's issue were offered, the offering price was fixed at the [eve[ of 215

roubtes for a share.

Earnings per share
31 Decernber 2017 31 December 2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (tenge) 43.6 43.2

Basic earnings per share
lndicator of ine basic earnings per share as at 31 December 2017 is based on revenue due to

owners of ordinary shares in the amount of 1,315,252 thousand tenge (31 December 2016:

865,015 thousand lenge; and the average weighted number of 30,179,144 outstanding ordinary

shares (31 December 2016:20,026,199 shares), and it is determined as foItows:
31 Decenrber 2017 31 December 2016

(b)

(c)

25

thousilnd tenge thousand tenge

-13i2,rre

Net revenue
Net revenue due to owners of ordinary shares

lssued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year

Effect of share issue during 12 months
Effect of purchased own shares

Average weighted number of ordinary shares for the
period ended on

"26,882,6013,293,990
15,000,466
5,283,334
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decernber 2017, thousand tenge

Calcutation of book vatue of the Bank's shares as at 3'l December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is
given betow:

31 December 2017 31 December 2015
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Net assets 41i,792,071 30,571 ,555

Quantity of outstanding shares
Book vatue of one share (tenge)

3t5,081,627 76,882,601
1,297 1,137

Analysis by segments

The Bank has one reporting segment.

The most of revenue from transactions with foreign customers is, accounted for by transactions
with residents of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan. The most of non-current assets is concentrated in

the Republic of Kazakhstan.

lnformatjon about major customers

For the period ended on 3'1 December 2017 and for the year enrCed on 31 December 2016, the
Bank has had not customers the revenue on transactions with wlrich exceeded 10% of the total
revenue of the Bank.

Risk management

Risk management is fundamentat for the banking activity and is an essential etement of operating
activity of the Bank. The market risk, credit risk and tiquidity risl< are the basic risks with which

the Bank faces in the course of its activities.

Risk management policy and procedure

The Bank's risk management policy is aimed at detection, anal.ysis and management of risks,

which the Bank is exposed to, fixing timits of risks and respective controt, as welI as continuous

assessment of risk levets and conformance thereof to the fixerl [imits. The risk management
poticy and procedures are reviewed on a regutar basis for the purpose of representation of
changes in the market situation, offered banking products and services and the best practice,

which appears.

The board of directors is tiabte for proper functioning of the system of risk management controt,
management of key risks and approval of the poticy of and procedures for risk management, as

wetl as approval of major transactions.

The management board is tiabte for monitoring and imptementation of the measures for reducing

risks, as wetl as it watches that the Bank carries out activity within fixed limits of risks. The

obtigations of the head of the Risk Department inctude general risk management and control of
corptiance with the requirements of the effective legistation, as wetl as control of apptication of
the general principtes and methods for detecting, assessing, managing and preparing reports both

on financial and non-financial risks, lt is accountabte directly to the Chairman of the Management

Board and directty to the Board of Directors.

The credit and market risks and tiquidity risk are managed and controtted by the system of the

Credit Committees and the Committee for Asset and Liabitity Management (CALM) both at the
[eve[ of portfotio in general and at the [eve[ of separate transactions. ln order to enhance

efficiency of the decision making process the Bank created the hierarchic structure of the credit
committees depending on type and extent of risk exposure.

Both externaI and internal risk factors are detected and managed inside the organization. Special

attention is paid to detection of the whote tist of the risk factors and determination of the [eve[

of adequacy of current procedures for risk minimization. Besides the standard anatysis of the

credit and market risks, the Risk Department monitors financiaI and non-financiaI risks through

regutar meetings with the operational subdivisions in order to get expert evatuation in particutar

di rections.

The market risk is a risk of change of a fair vatue or future cash flows on a financiaI instrument

due to change of the market prices. The market risk consists ol' foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, as wett as the other price risks. The Bank is exposed to the market risk as the resutt of

open market position on interest, foreign exchange, debt and equity financial instruments, which
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financjal statements for the period ended on 31 Decernber 2017, thousand tenge

depend on overatl and specific fluctuations of the market conditions and change of the [eve[ of

votatility of the market Prices.

The task of the market risk management is to manage and contrr:l that exposure to the market

risk does not go beyond the timits of admissibte parameters with ensuring optimization of return

earned for assumed risk.

Risk management, continued

Market risk

The CALM headed by the Chairman of the Management Board is tiabte for management of market

risk. The CALM approves the timits of market risk based on recommendations of the Risk

Department.

The Bank manages the market risk by fixing the limits for open prosition with respect to amount

of the portfotio for separate financiaI instruments, periods for changing interest rates, foreign

exchange position, timits of losses and regutar monitoring of compliance therewith the resutts of

which ire considered and approved by the Management Board'

lnterest rate risk
The interest rate risk is a risk of change of the fair vatue or future cash ftows on a financial

instrument due to change of the market interest rates. The Bank is exposed to inftuence of

ftuctuations of prevaiting market interest rates on its financiat position and cash flows. Such

ftuctuations may increas; the tevet of interest margin, however it may atso reduce the same or,
jn case of unexpected change of interest rates, result in losses. The interest rate risk is primarity

managed through monitoring of change of the interest rates'

(i)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

27 Risk management, continued

(b) Market risk, continued

(ii) Average interest rates

The table betow represents the average interest rates on interest assets and tiabitities as at 31

December 2017 and 31 December 2016. These interest rates represent approximate yietd to
maturity of respective assets and tiabilities.

31 December 2017
Average interest rate, %

31 December 2016
Average interest rate, %

Tenge US dollar Tenge US dollar
lnterest assets
Cash and cash equivalents
FinanciaI instruments measured at fair
vatue the changes in which are booked
as parts of profit or loss for the period
Financia[ assets avaitable for sate
Credits and advances granted/paid to
banks and other financiaI institutions
- Credits
- Term deposits
- Reverse REPO transactions
Credits granted to customers
lnterest tiabilities
Accounts and deposits of banks and
other financiaI institutions
- Credits
- term deposits
Current accounts and deposits of
customers
- Current accounts
- Term deposits

9.25

9.7
8.3

12.00
9.00

17.93
14.94 11.66

12.00
19.0

15.87

4.0;

12.57

2.69

't1.38 0.42

9.32 7.25

8.19
3 1.5

8.82
3.31

2 4.7
9.75 2.47 n3; 4.2;

(iii) Analysis of sensitivity to change of interest rates

Management of interest rate risk based on anatysis of the daters of interest rate revision is
supptemented with monitoring of sensitivity of the financiaI assets and [iabitities.

Anatysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and capital (tess taxes) to change of interest rates (risk of
interest rates revision) prepared on the basis of simptified scenarjo of 100 basis points paraltel
shift in the yietd curye toward increase or decrease in interest rates and revised positions on
interest assets and tiabitities prevailing as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 20'16 may be
presented as fottows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

100 basis point symmetrical fatl of interest rates
100 basis point symmetricaI rise of interest rates

100 basis point symmetrical fa[[ of rates
100 basis point symmetricaI rise of rates

124,ggg
(124,988)

(775,965)
725,965

Anatysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and capitaI to changes in the fair vatue of financiaI assets
avaitabte for sate due to changes in interest rates (prepared on the basis of positions prevaiting
as at 31 December 2017 and 3'l December 7016 and simptifiecl scenario of 100 basis point
paratte[ shift in the yietd curves towards increase or decrease in interest rates) may be
presented as fottows:

31 December 2017 31 December 7016
Profit or loss Capital Profit or loss Capital

thousand thousand thousand thousand
tenge tenge tenge
27,633

(23,8 ji8)
- 24,9511
- (24,445)

tenge
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'l December 2017, thousand tenge

27 Risk management, continued

(b) Market risk, continued

(iv) Foreign exchange risk

The Bank has assets and liabitities denominated in several foreign ,:urrencies.

Foreign exchange risk is a risk of change of fair vatue or future cash ftows on a financial
instrument due to change of foreign exchange rates. The Bank does not hedge its exposure to
foreign exch.ange risk.

As at 31 December 2017, the structure of the financiaI assets and tiabitities broken down by
currencies may be presented as fottows:

- OtherEuro TOTALcurrencles
thousand thousand thousand

tenge tenge tenge
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivatents
FinanciaI instruments measured at fair
vatue the changes in which are booked
as parts of profit or loss for the period
FinanciaI assets available for sale
Credits and advances granted/paid to
banks and other financiaI institutions
Credits granted to customers
Other financiaI assets
Other assets
TotaI assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts and deposits of banks and
other financiaI institutions
Current accounts and deposits of
customers
REPO transactions
Other financiat tiabitities
Other [iabitities
Totat liabilities
Net item
Effect of derivative instruments
Net item subject to effect of
derivative instru ments

789,635 20,631 ,311

3,343,002

3,774,470 678,173 - 3,952,643

682,709 157,472,347

US dollar

thousand
tenge

12,555,140 7,286,537

3,343,002

55,061,270 41 ,8i80 1 ,759,345 56,362,445

1,310,754 165,944 207 ,589 1,684,287
75,494,586 8,122,533 2,256,569 85,873,688

148,575,599 8,214,Ct39

14,302 634,ti05 1,542 650,649
254,939 142,2-57 27,560 419,756

148,844,840 8,991,101 706,811 158,542,752
(73,350,254) (868,568) 1,549,758 (72,669,0641

73,943,425 73,943,425

593,171 (868,568) 1,549,758 1,274,361
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'l December 2017, thousand tenge

27 Risk management, continued

(b) Market risk, continued

(iv) Foreign exchange risk

As at 31 Decembe 2016, the structure of the financial assets and tiabitities broken down by

currencies may be presented as fottows:

US dottar Euro 9ffi"1currencies Total
thousand thousand thousand thousand

tenge tenge tenge tenge

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivatents
FinanciaI assets avaitabte for sale
Credits and advances granted/paid to
banks and other financia[ institutions
Credits granted to customers
Other financiaI assets
TotaI assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts and deposits of banks and
other financiaI institutions 1,341 ,612 977,400 2,319,012

103,070,799 776,644 174,512 104,021,455
1,254,309 1,754,309

4,037,697 4,037,697
53,472,067 661 ,439 1 ,008,1 38 55,141 ,644

467,834 3,611 196,!!2

-1A,297,206 
1,441,694 1,182,650 164,921,550

Current accounts and dePosits of
customers 160,404,281 1,775,062 187,877 162,367,220

Other financiat tiabitities
Total liabilities
Net item

Anatysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and capitaI to change of foreign exchange rates based on

posiiions prevaiting as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December2016 and simptified scenario of 10%

change of foreign exchange rates of US dottar and Euro to tenge nray be presented as fottows:
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge-
94,907

(73,727)
(138,971)

34,743

20% increase in US dottar to tenge rate
5% decrease in US dottar to tenge rate
20% increase in Euro to tenge rate
5% decrease in Euro to tenge rate

85,613
(21,4031
(57,579)
14,395

(v)

(c)

Other price risks

Other price risks are risks of ftuctuations in fair vatue or future cash ftows on a financial

instrument as the resutt of changes in market prices (except r:hanges resutted from effect of

interest rate risk or foreign exchinge risk) irrespective of whether such changes are caused by

the factors inherent in that particular instrument or issuer thereof or the factors affecting atl

simitar pubticty traded financiaI instruments. The other price risks arise, when the Bank has a

long or short position on a financial instrument.

Credit risk

Credit risk is a risk of financiat losses resulted from defautt in obtigations of a borrower or

counterparty of the Bank. The Bank manages credit risk (on recognized financial assets and

unrecognized contractuat tiabitities) through apptying approved policies and procedures inctuding

the req-uirements for fixing and comptying with the timits of cotrcentration of the credit risk, as

wetl as through formation of the Credit Committee the funrctions of which inctude active

monitoring oflfre credit risk. The credit poticy is considered and approved by the Board of

Di rectors.

The credit poticy determines:
- the procedures for consideration and approval of credit apptications;
- (corporate and retait) borrower creditworthiness evatuation rnethods;

- Proposed security evatuation methods;
- requirements for credit documentation;
- procedures for continuous monitoring of credits and other cr,edit risk bearing products'
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'l December 2017, thousand tenge

Risk management, continued

Credit risk, continued

Apptication form corporate customers to obtain credits shatl be made up by respective customer

managers and then detivered for consideration to the Credit Product Department, which shatl be

tiabte for portfotio of credits granted to tegal entities. Reports of anatysts of that department are

based on structuraI analysis of business and financiaI position of a borrower. Then the

apptications and expert conclusions shatt be subject to independr:nt examination in the Security

Department, Legal Department, Ptedge Expertise and Monitoring Office, Risk Department, which

shatl present their conctusions; moreover, proper comptiance with the requirements of the

effectlve tegistation and internal regutatory documents of the Barrk shat[ be checked. The Credit

Committee thatt consider an application for a credit on the brasis of anatysis of conctusions

presented by the Security Department, LegaI Department, and Risk Department' After

consideration the Credit Committee shatt make a decision to grant or not to grant a credit.
Before the Credit Committee approves particular transactions thery shatl be checked by the Legat

Department, Tax Department and Accounting Department depend'ing on risk specific nature.

The Bank continuousty monitors status of particutar credits and regutarty revatuate solvency of its

borrowers. Revatuation procedures are based on anatysis of the financial statements of a

borrower as at the last reporting date or the other information submitted by a borrower itsetf or

obtained by the Bank in another way. The current market vatur: of a security is atso regularty

assessed Oy tfre independent firms of professional appraisers or in-house speciatists. ln case the

market vatue of security decreases, a borrower is usuatty requirecl to provide cottaterat.

Besides anatysis of individual borrowers, the Risk Department evaluates credit portfotio in

general with respect to concentration of credits and market risks.

As a rule, the maximaI tevet of the credit risk is presented in book vatue of financiaI assets in the

statement of financial position and in amount of unrecognized contractuat tiabitities' A possibitity

to set off assets and tiabitities js not substantiatty significant fcr reduction of potentia[ credit

risk.

The maximat [evet of the credit risk with respect to the financiaI assets as at the reporting date

may be presented as fottows:

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

ASSETS

Cash equivalents
FinanciaI instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in

which are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period

FinanciaI assets avaitabte for sate

Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other
financiaI i nstitutions
Credits granted to customers
Other financiaI assets
Total maximal risk level

thousand tenge thousand tenge

57,872,879 134,660,548

518,342
476,790

527,738

2,707,494

6,611,745
169,889,325 ',l81,668,650

_ 28,857,937 8,750,335

: 258,092,961 334,39

A cottateraI usuaIty is not provided with respect to the right of ctaim on the credits and advances

granted/paid to banks, with the exception of cases, where secunities are obtained under reverse

REPO transactions and transactions retating to securities borrowing.

Anatysis of cottaterat hetd on credits granted to customers and concentration of the credit risk on

credits granted to customers is given in Note 17.

Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities

Disctosures of information presented in the tabtes betow inctude the information about financial

assets and financiaI tiabitities, which:
. are set off in the statement of financial position of the Bank or

. are the subject of tegatty vatid master netting agreement or simitar agreements, which

extend to simitar financiat instruments, irrespective of urhether they are set off in the

statement of financial position. 
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decernber 2017, thousand tenge

Risk management, continued

Credit risk, continued

Offset of financial assets and financial liabitities, continued

The Bank receives and accepts cotlateral in the form of cash and securities traded in the market

with respect to the fottowing transactions:

o REPO transactions, reverse REPO transactions; and

o credits granted to customers, securities borrowing and lending agreements.

The securities received as cottaterat/detivered as ptedge on REPO and reverse REPO transactions

may be detivered as ptedge during the period of a transaction, b,ut they must be returned until
malurity date of a transaction. The securities delivered as ptedge under securities borrowing and

lending agreements may not be detivered as ptedge or sotd during a period of a transaction and

must be ieturned untit maturity date of a transaction. Conditions of a transaction atso entitte

every counterparty to terminate respective transactions as the rr:sutt of counterparty's inabitity
to provide cottaterat.

The tabte below presents the financiaI assets, which are subject to tegatty vatid master netting

agreements and similar agreements as at 31 December 2017.

Types of
financial
assets/

financial
liabilities

Full amounts Full Net amount
of recognized amounts of of financial

financial recognized assets in the
assets/ financiaI statement of
financial liabilities, financial
liabilities which were Position

set off in
the

statement
of financial

169,189,325 - 169,189,325

Amounts, which were not Net amount
set off in the statement of

financial position

instruments cash securitY

- (5,642,183) 164,547 ,147

Position

transactions
Credits
granted to
customers
Total financial
assets
Current
accounts and
deposits of
customers
Total financial
tiabitities

188,411,691 - 188,411 (19,222,3661 ( 183) 1 64,547,1

- 5,642,183

(5,642,183) - (5,642,183)
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(c)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decernber 2017, thousand tenge

Risk management, continued

Credit risk, continued

Offset of financiaI assets and financial liabilities, continued

The tabte betow presents the financiaI assets, which are subject of tegatty vatid master netting

agreements and simitar agreements as at 31 December 2016.

Fult
amounts of
recognized
financial
liabilities,

Ful[ amounts which Net amount
Types of of recognized were set of financial
financial financial off in the assets in the
assets/ assets/ statement statement of
financial financial of financial financial Financial Received cash

liabi lities liabilities position position instrumr:nts security
132)

transactions
credits 181 ,668,650 1 81 ,668,650 (76,165,1971 1 55,503,453

granted to
customers
Total financiat llZT 120,165,197\ 155,503,453

assets
Current
accounts and
deposits of
customers
Totalfinanciat (26,165,1971 - (26,165,197) - 26,165,197

tiabitities

Amounts, which were not
set off in the statement of

fina,nciaI position Net amount

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Bank may face difficutties in raising funds to futfit its obtigations.

ffre 5qlidity risk arises in case of assets and tiabitities maturity mismatching' Assets and

tjabitities miturity and interest rate matching and/or controtterl mismatching is a fundamental

moment in tiquidity risk management. Due to variety of transactions settted and retated

uncertainty, futt asiets and tiabitities maturity matching is not usual practice for the financiaI

institutioni that enabtes to increase cost effectiveness of transactions, but increases the risk of

Iosses.

The Bank keeps necessary leveI of tiquidity in order to ensure continuous avaitabitity of funds

required to discharge att tiabitities as far as their maturity datel; fatt. The tiquidity management

poticy is considered and approved by the Board of Directors.

The Bank tries to activety maintain diversified and stabte structure of financing sources consisting

of long-term and short-term credits of other banks, deposits of principat corporate customers and

naturJt persons, as wetl as diversjfied portfotio of highty tiquid assets in order to enable the Bank

to promptty respond unforeseen requirements with respect to tiquidity without any sharp

ftuctuations.

The tiquidity management poticy consists of:
- cash ftow forecasting broken down by basic currencies and catcutation of necessary [eve[ of

liquid assets retated with those cash ftows;
- maintenance of diversified structure of financing sources;
- management of concentration and structure of borrowed funcls;
- devetopment of the ptans for raising funds at the expense of tlorrowed funds;
- maintenance of the portfotio of highty liquid assets, which may be freety disposed of as a

protective measure in case of cash tiquidity gap;
- devetopment of reserve ptans for keeping tiquidity and pre-set financing levet;
- controi of conformance of the tiquidity ratios to statutority prescribed rates.
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

27 Risk management, continued

(d) Liquidity risk, continued

The Treasury Department obtains from the subdivisions the information about the structure of

tiquidity of their financial assets and tiabjtities and forecastingl of cash ftows expected from

businesi ptanned in the future. Then the Treasury Department forms respective portfotio of

short-term tiquid assets consisting substantiatty of short-term liquid securities hetd for trade,

credits and advances granted/paid to banks, and other interbarrk products in order to ensure

required [eve[ of tiquidity for the Bank in generat.

The Treasury Department daity monitors tiquidity positions and regutarty carries out stress tests

subject to various scenarios of the market condition both urrder normaI and unfavourabte

conditions. Under normal market conditions the reports on liquiclity status are submitted to the

top management on a weekty basis. Decisions regarding the tiquidity management poticy shatl be

made by the CALM and executed by the Treasury Department'
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notestothefinanciatstatementsfortheperiodendedon3l December2017, thousandtenge

Capital management

The Bank is activety controlting the capitat adequacy ratio in order to protect from risks inherent in

its activities. The Bank's capitat adequacy is controtted using, besides other methods, the ratios

fixed by the RK NB when supervising the activity of the Bank.

As at 31 December 20'17 and 31 December 2016, the Bank futty comptied with atl external

requirements with respect to capitat as prescribed by the legistation. The main purpose of the

capitat management for the Bank consists in ensuring compliance by the Bank of externaI

requirementr witf, respect to capitat and maintenance of high credit rating and capitaI adequacy

ratios required to carry out activity and to maximize sharehotder vatue. The Bank manages the

structure of its capitai and adjusts the same in terms of changes in economic conditions and

characteristics of risk of the types of activity carried out. Tl^re RK NB prescribes and controts

comptiance with the requirements to capitat tevet of the Bank. ln accordance with the requirements

in force as prescribed by the RK NB, the banks must maintain:

. ratio of equity to assets and contingent tiabitities weiqhted by a degree of credit risk,

assets, contingent ctaims and tiabitities calcutated subject to market risk and quantitative

operating teverage (k1 );

. ratio of 1 tier capital less investments to assets and contingent tiabitities weighted by a
degree of credit risk, assets, contingent ctaims and tiabitities catcutated subject to market

risk and quantitative operating leverage (k1.2);

. ratio of equity capita[ to assets and contingent tiabititirts weighted by a degree of credit

risk, assets, contingent ctaims and tiabitities catcutated subject to market risk and

quantitative operating leverage (k2).

The equity capitaI is catcutated as an amount of the first tier capitaI and the second tier capita[ [ess

the fottowing positive differences:

1 ) between amount of deposits of naturaI persons and equity capitaI according to details from the

batance sheet multiPtied bY 5.5;
2) between the provisions catcutated in accordance with the Guidetines for forming provisions for

impairment of aisets of the Bank in the form of loans and accounts receivabte and the provisions

foimed and booked in the accounting records of the Bank in accordance with the IFRS and the

requirements of the tegistation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan c,oncerning business accounting and

financia[ reporting (hereinafter - the positive difference). For the purposes of catcutation of the

equity capital stated in paragraph 2), the positive difference is calcutated by the banks and included

in the fottowing amounts:
from 25 September 2017 - 5 (five) percent;
from December 2017 - 16.67 (sixteen point sixty-seven) percent;

from 1 september 2018 - 33.33 (thirty-three point thirty-three) percent;

from 1 September 7019 - 49.99 (forty-nine point ninety-nine) perr:ent;

from 1 September 2020 - 66.67 (sixty-six point sixty-seven) percent;

from 1 september 2021 - 83.33 (eighty-three point thirty-three) percent;

from 1 September 2072 - 0 (zero) percent.
The positive difference adjusted based on the resutts of inspection by the authorized body shatt be

inctuded into catcutation oi equity capitat as from the reporting date foltowing a reporting month'
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

Capital management, continued
The tabte below contains anatysis of capital of the Bank caLcutated in accordance with the
requirements of the RK NB as at 31 December 2017 and 31 Decembrer 2016:

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge
1 tier capital
Capital stock:
Share capitaI
Regutatory additionaI paid capital
Provisions for covering general banking risk
Deferred tax tiabitity attributed to fixed asset revatuation
Regutatory retained profit - previous year
Regutatory retained profit - reporting period
Provision for revaluation of financial assets availabte for sate
Provision for fixed asset revatuation
Regu latory adj ustments:
Own purchased ordinary shares
Regutatory intangibte assets
Total 1 tier capital

2 tier capital
Subordinated debt
Total 2 tier capital
TotaI capital

Positive difference between amount of deposits of natural
persons and equity capital according to details of the
balance sheet multiptied by 5.5 deductible from equity
capital
Positive difference between provisions calculated in
accordance with the Guidelines for forming provisions for
impairment of assets of the Bank in the form of loans and
accounts receivable on previously granted bank loans and
provisions formed and booked in the accounting records of
the Bank in accordance with the lnternational Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the legislation
of the Republic of Kazakhstan concerning business
accounting and financial reporting
Risk-weighted assets
Credit risk weighted assets
Credit risk weighted contingent tiabitities
Credit risk weighted derivative financiaI instruments
Assets and contingent ctaims and tiabitities catcutated subject
to market risk
OperationaI risk
Total risk-weighted assets, contingent claims and liabilities,
operational risk

Ratio k1

Ratio k1-2
Ratio k2

42,085,468
(112,895)

957,976

2,492,436

1 00,800
5,193,792

78,027,337
(14,083 )

957,976

1,456,742
865,015

99,999
294,177

qo,gog,ogl 30,532,71;

2,822,267

310,952,749 246,158,926
40,108,745 36,779,066

401,384

17,411,663 1,135,807
3,306,948 3,327,422

372,181,489 221287

o.126 0.1 06
o.126 0.1 06

0.1 06

1,154,451

0.1 19
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge
Contingent credit tiabilities

The Bank has contingent tiabitities on provision of credit re:;ources. These contingent credit
tiabitities provide for issue of credit resources in the form of approved credit, [imits on credit cards,
as we[[ as overdraft. The Bank issues bank guarantees and opens letters of credit for the purposes of
provision of futfilment of obtigations of its customers to third persons. The mentioned agreements
record the [imits of tiabitities and, as a rute, are valid for up to five years. When providing financiaI
guarantees, credit contingent tiabitities and letters of credit, the Bank appties the same risk
management poticy and procedures as when granting credits to cu:;tomers.

Contractual amounts of contingent credit liabitities are presented in the tabte below broken down
by categories. Amounts presented in the table as regards guaranti3es and letters of credit represent
maximal amount of accounting [oss, which woutd be booked as at the reporting date in case the
counterparties coutd not futfiI their obligations in accordance r,vith the terms and conditions of
contracts.

31 Decernber 2017 31 December 2016
thou:;and tenge thousand tenge

3,115,449 1,949,921Liabitities on granting credits and credit facitities
Guarantees

30

34,302,542 35,947,375
37.417.991 37,896,246

Many of the stated contingent credit tiabitities may be terminated without partiaI or fu[[ discharge
thereof. Due to this, the contingent credit tiabitities mentioned above do not represent expected
cash outftow.

Guarantees are secured with reaI estate, cash deposits, guaranl-ees of naturaI persons and other
cottaterat.

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank had two counterparties (31 December 2016: five) of which the
share of guarantees and liabilities on granting credits exceeds 10% of capitat. As at 31 December
2017, the totaI batances on guarantees and tiabitities on grienting credits of the mentioned
customers amounted lo 12,466,027 thousand tenge (31 December 7016:21,332,559 thousand tenge).

When assuming unrecognized contingent tiabitities, the Bank uses the same credit control and
management policies as when assuming the tiabitities on recognize,d transactions.

Operating lease

As at 31 December 2017 and 3'l December 2016, the Bank had not significant accounts payable under
non-canceltable operating lease contracts.

During twetve months of the year 2017, the expense in the amount of 869,472 thousand tenge was
recognized as part of profit or loss with respect to operating leilse contracts (31 December 2016:
821,977 thousand tenge).

Contingent liabi tities

lnsurance

The market of insurance services in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan is at the stage of devetopment,
therefore many forms of insurance coverage appticabte in other countries are stit[ unavaitabte in the
Repubtic of Kazakhstan. The Bank did not futty insure the buitdings and equipment, temporary
suspension of activity or tiabitity of third persons as regards property or environmentaI damage
incurred as the resutt of use of the Bank's property or in other cases retating to activity of the Bank.
UntiI the Bank sufficientty incurs its activities, there is a risk that incurred losses or forfeiture of
particutar assets may have material adverse effect on activity and financial position of the Bank.

Pending legal proceedings

ln the course of its normaI activity in the market the Bank faces clifferent types of legaI claims. The
management believes that the definitive value of tiabitities resutting from [ega[ proceedings wit[ not
have materia[ adverse effect on financiaI position or further activity of the Bank.

31

(a)

(b)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'1 December 2017 , thousand tenge
Contingent liabilities, continued

On 07 February 2017, the Bank received ctaims from "Orda t3lass LTD" LLP for futfitment of
obtigations on the bank guarantees issued to "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP. Under decision of the
Speciatized lnter-district Economic Court of Kyzytorda oblast clated 09.06 .2017, the amount of
4,445,648 thousand tenge was recovered from the Bank under the above-mentioned bank guarantees
due to improper futfilment of obtigations by "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP to "Orda Gtass LTD" LLP.

The amounts of 1.244,508 thousand tenge and 933.526 thousand tenge inctuded into the amount of
recovery under decisions of the SIDEC dated 09.06.7017 were ther amounts guaranteed by the Bank
as refundabte advance payment. As it appears from the materials available today, the amounts of
advance payment of "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP were workerj off that was confirmed by the
resutts of examination and copies of the reports on works performed. Thus, actuatty stated bank
advance payment refund guarantees as of the day on which "Orda Gtass LTD" LLP fited the
statement of ctaim were terminated and not subject to execution.

ln accordance with conclusion of examination No.'1523 dated 30.03.2017 carried out within the
scope of the criminal case of "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP for the period from 0'l .03.2015 to
10.01.2017, the works were performed and services were rendere,d for "Orda Gtass LTD" LLP to the
total amount of 3.901,487 thousand tenge. Thus, on the basis of the newly revealed facts it was
ascertained that "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP actuatty rendered the services under issued advance
payment refund guarantees whereof signed reports on works performed and conclusion of
examination No.1523 dated 30.03.2017 evidence. ln addition, "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP sent for
signing to "Orda Glass LTD" LLP the reports on works performed to the amount of 317,562 thousand
tenge. lt foltows from the premises that as per information avaitabte as at the current date,
"Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP performed works to the total cost amounting lo 4,219,049 thousand
tenge.

At the present moment the Bank is preparing a suit for recovery from "Orda Glass LTD" LLP of the
unjustified beneficiation in the amount of 2,178,035 thousand tenge under the decision of the SIDEC

of Kyzytorda oblast dated 09.06.2017, in proportion to reduction of the fine amounting to 2'17,803
thousand tenge and the state duty amounting to 71,875 thousand tenge. The total ctaims made by
the Bank wittamount 1o2,685,517 thousand tenge.

The Bank's management evatuates affirmative court decision on satisfaction of the suit as very
probabte. The main argument of the Bank is that the amounts of advances for which the Bank
guaranteed refund in case of improper fulfitment of obtigations have been worked off and accepted
by "Orda Gtass Ltd" LLP.

The batance of outstanding amount of 1,760,131 thousand tenge witt be repaid by
"Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP in the frame of apptied rehabilitation procedure in accordance with
the rehabilitation ptan to be approved by the Committee of Creditors or, in case the rehabilitation
procedure is cancelled, at the expense of ptedged property.

Under issued guarantees the Bank accepted cottateral from "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP to the
tota[ amount of 5,177,945 thousand tenge.

As at 31 December 2017, the other assets inctuded the accounts receivabte from
"Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP in the amount of 4,577 ,164 thousand tenge consisting of the amounts
of advance payment refund guarantees and the debt on past due fees (Note 19).

Contingent tax liabilities

The tax system of Kazakhstan, which is retativety new, is characl-erized by frequent changes in the
Iegislative rutes, officiaI interpretations and judiciaI decisions, which are often inexpticit and
contradictory that admits ambiguous interpretation thereof by clifferent tax authorities, inctuding
opinions regarding procedure for accounting for incomes, expenses, and other items of the financial
statements in accordance with the IFRS. The regulatory authorillies of different levets entitted to
impose large penatties and to charge interests are in charge of audits and investigations with
respect to accuracy of tax assessment. Accuracy of tax assessment during the reporting period may
be checked during subsequent five catendar years, however under particutar circumstances that

(c)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

period may be extended. Recent events occurred in the Repubtir: of Kazakhstan evidence that the

tax authorities hotd more rigid position when interpreting and apptying the tax [aws'
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge
31 Contingentliabilities,continued

(c) Contingent tax liabilities, continued

These circumstances may have the result that the tax risks in Ka;zakhstan witt be much higher than
in other countries. Based on its understanding of the appticabte tax laws, regutatory requirements
and judiciat decisions, the Bank's management betieves that the tax tiabitities are booked in futt.
Neverthetess, interpretation of those provisions by respective authorities may differ and, in case
they may prove lawfulness of their position that may significantty iaffect these financiaI statements.

32 Related party transactions

(a) Control

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank was under control of Mr. O.T. Iokhtarov (3'1 December 2016: Mr.
O.T. Tokhtarov), who sotety owns 52.39% shares in the Bank (see Note 1) (31 December 2016: he
owned 61.07% shares in the Bank).

(b) Transactions with the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Board

The totaI fees inctuded into the item "Costs for personnet" for the periods ended on 31 December
2017 , 2016 may be presented as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Members of the Board of Directors and the Management
Board of the Bank 201,740 148,926

201,740 148,926

The mentioned amounts include monetary and non-monetary fees to the members of the
Management Board and the Board of Directors.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the balances on l-he accounts and average fee rates
on transactions with the members of the Management Board and the Board of Directors amounted
to:

3'l December 2017 Average fee 31 December 2016 Average fee
thousand tenge rate thousand tenge rate

Statement of financial position
Credits granted to customers
Current accounts and deposits
of customers

42,002 14-23y" 48,212 14.20%

391,726 7,07%

The amounts inctuded as parts of profit or loss on transactions with the members of the Management
Board and the members of the Board of Directors as at 31 December 2017 may be presented as

fottows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Profit or loss
lnterest income
lnterest expense 17 ,017

538,1 66 9.80%

4,117 6,873
1 0,366

64



32

(b)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

Related party transactions, continued

Transactions with the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Board, continued

As at 31 December 2017, the batances on settlement of payment:; and average fee rates, as wetl as

respective profit or loss on transactions with the other retated parties for twelve months ended on
3'l December 7017 amounted to:

Shareholders
Other companies under
control of shareholders Total

thousand Average thousand Average thousand
tenge fee rate, % tengr: fee rate, % tenge

Statement of financial
position
LIABILITIES
Current accounts and
deposits of customers
- Term deposits

- tenge
- US dottar
- Euro

- Current accounts and
deposits on demand

- tenge
- US dottar
- Euro
- Pound
- Roubte

Current accounts and
deposits of financial
institutions
- tenge
Profit or loss
lnterest expenses (e3s) (4,2:i8)

8,293
88
29

'l ,333
74
15

3

1

13.73%
1.75%

1.5%

51 ,446
26,331
4,813

10,525
7,598

7
1

1

13.6%
2.33%

2%

59,739
26,419
4,842

1 1 ,858
7,622

72
4
z

(5,173;
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

As at 31 December 20'16, the batances on settlement of payments; and average fee rates, as wetl as
respective profit or loss on transactions with the other related parties for the year ended on 3'l
December 2016 amounted to:

Shareholders
Other companies under
control of shareholders Total

thousand
tenge

Average thousand Average thousand
fee rate, % tenge fee rate, % tenge

Statement of financial
position
LIABILITIES
Current accounts and
deposits of customers
- Term deposits

- tenge
- US dottar
- Euro

- Current accounts and
deposits on demand

- tenge
- US dottar
- Euro
- Pound
- Rouble

Profit or loss
lnterest expenses

353,322
400

24

14,647
154
218

1,001
1

(47 ,103)

3 53,322
400

24

17,835
154
218

'1,001

1

(47,103)

14.0%
2.0%
1.5%

3,1[]8
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(a)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

Financial assets and tiabitities: fair value and accounting classifications, continued

Accounting classifications and fair value, continued

Measurement of fair vatue is aimed at determination of a price, which would result upon sate of
an asset or paid upon delivery of a tiabitity under condition:; of a transaction settted in

organized market between the market participants as at the date of measurement.

Neverthetess, considering uncertainty and use of subjective judge'ments the fair value must not

be interpreted as reatizabte in the context of immediate sate of a:;sets or delivery of tiabitities.

Fair value of financial assets and financiat tiabitities traded in active market is based on market
quotations or deater prices. The Bank assesses fair vatue of atI other financiaI instruments of

the Bank using the other vatuation methods.

The purpose of the valuation methods is to achieve a fair vatue measurement method

representing a price at which a transaction made in organized market woutd be settted to setl

an asset or to detiver a tiabitity between the market participants ils at a measurement date.

The Bank uses widety recognized vatuation models to assess fainratue of financial instruments.
The valuation methods inctude the modets of vatuation of current net present vatue and cash

ftows discounting, comparison with simitar instruments with respect to which the market
quotation are known. The vatuation methods are aimed at assessrnent of fair vatue representing

vatue of a financiaI instrument as at the reporting date, which would be assessed by

independent market participants.

Fair value measurement hierarchY

The Bank measures fair vatue using the fottowing fair vatue measurement hierarchy considering

materiatity of data used when making the mentioned measurements.

o Level 1: quotations in active market (unadjusted) with respect to identical financial

instruments.

. Level 2: data other than quotations retating to Level 1, which is avaitable directty (id
est quotations) or indirectty (id est data derivative from quotations). This category

inctudes instruments measured using: market quotation:; in active markets for simitar
instruments, market quotations for simitar instruments in the markets not considered as

active or other vatuation methods atl used data of which are directty or indirectty based

on observable inPut data.

o Level 3: data, which is not availabte. This category inctucles instruments measured using

the information not based on observabte input data, with the assumption that such non-

observable data have materiaI effect on instrument measurement. This category
inctudes instruments measured on the basis of quotations for simitar instruments with
respect to which it is required to use material non-obsenrabte quotations or judgements

to book a difference between instruments.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Bank measured fair vatue of assets

avaitabte for sate and financiaI instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in which are

booked as parts of profit or loss for the period by using the vatuation methods based on

observabte input data (Levet 2)'

(b)
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(b)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

Financial assets and tiabilities: fair value and accounting classifications, continued

Fair value measurement hierarchy, continued

The tabte below contains analysis of fair vatue of financiaI instruments not measured at fair
vatue as at 31 December 2017, broken down by levets of fair value hierarchy.

thousand tenge
Cash and cash
equivatents
FinanciaI instruments
measured at fair vatue
the changes in which
are booked as parts of
profit or loss for the
period
FinanciaI assets
avaitabte for sale
Credits and advances
granted/paid to banks
and other financial
institutions
Credits granted to
customers
Other financiaI assets

Accounts and dePosits
of banks and other
fi nanciaI institutions
Current accounts and
deposits of customers
REPO transactions
Other financiaI
tiabitities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Total fair Total book

value value

65,632,908 65,632,908 65,632,908

527,738 527,738

7 ,945,284

626,790

8,572,O74

527,738

169,889,375
28,857,937

264,907,9O8

7,945,784

626,790

7 ,945,284

626,794

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

20,097,849

264,810,845
641,658

7-,790,780

_28r,811,14 -_ 2e9;]!,4r0

Total fair
value

159,157,179 169,889,325
28,857 ,937 78,479,982

262,747,786 273,479,982

20,097,849 20,097,849

267,308,183 264,810,845
641,658 641,658

7,290,780
287,841,132

Total book
value

The tabte betow contains anatysis of fair vatue of financiaI insl-ruments not measured at fair
vatue as at 31 December 2016, broken down by levets of fair vatue hierarchy.

thousand tenge
Cash and cash
equivatents
Credits and advances
granted/paid to banks
and other financial
i nstitutions
Credits granted to
customers
Other financiaI assets

Accounts and deposits
of banks and other
fi nanciaI institutions
Current accounts and
deposits of customers
Subordinated bonds
Other financiaI
[iabitities

44,061,994

145,814,378
7,022,664

44,061,994

145,814,378
7,027,664

45,844,884

145,182,100

51,996,783 51,996,783 51,996,783

13,340,01 '1 1 3,340,01 1 13,340,011

107,539,086 24,083,4".J3 131,627,519 131,824,973
18,050,229

19O,926,1O9 24,083,4'.13

7,022,664

1,284,305 .. 1,284,305 1,284,305

198,183,341 - 198,183,341 199,333,953

69
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

34 Events after reporting date

ln the context of imptementation of the standards of IFRS 9 as at 01.02.2018 the provisions for
impairment of granted credits have been formed to the amount of about 2 200 000 thousand

tenge, as a resutt the totat provisions amounted to about 1 3 000 000 thousand tenge.

As at 01.03.2018, changes in provisions for January-February 2018 for impairment of granted

credits amounted to 1 708 329 thousand tenge, as wetl as the loans have been written off to
the total amount of 1 976 837 thousand tenge; as the resutt of the mentioned changes the total
provisions for impairment of granted credits amounted to about'10 536 679 thousand tenge'
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